## INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

October 25, 2022

To Listing Department The National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) Mumbai - 400 051

#### Symbol: SUBCAPCITY

Dear Sir /Madam,

Sub: Update in relation to voluntary delisting of the equity shares of International Constructions Limited ("Company") from National Stock Exchange of India Limited in accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021, as amended ("Delisting Regulations") and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015.

We wish to inform you that one of the promoters of International Constructions Limited viz., Mrs. Priti Devi Sethi ("Acquirer") along with Anil Kumar Sethi HUF ("PAC 1"), Deepak Sethi ("PAC 2") and Zoom Industrial Services Limited ("PAC 3"), person acting in concert with the Acquirer who are forming a part of the promoter and promoter group of the company, as defined under the SEBI (Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (collectively referred to as the "PACs") had published the "Detail Public Announcement" (DPA) on  $21^{st}$  October 2022 in the newspaper in terms of Regulation 15(1) of the SEBI Delisting Regulations, expressing their intention to : **a.** Acquire 9,08,490 (Nine Lakhs Eight Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety) fully paid-up equity shares of the Company, having a face value of INR 10/- (Indian Rupee Ten) each, ("Equity Shares") representing (25%) of the paid-up capital held by the public shareholders of the Company (as defined under the Delisting Regulations and to be referred to as "Public Shareholders") either individually / collectively along with the persons acting in concert, as the case maybe; and **b**. Consequently, voluntarily delist the Equity Shares from the concerned stock exchange where the equity shares of the Company, presently listed namely, National Stock Exchange of India Limited (hereinafter referred to as, "NSE" or "Stock Exchange"), by making a delisting offer in accordance with the SEBI Delisting Regulations ("Delisting Offer").

In this regard, we have receipt from SKI Capital Services Limited, Manager to the Delisting Offer on behalf of the Acquirer and PACs, Letter of Offer dated 25<sup>th</sup> October 2022 ("LOF") in terms of Regulation 16 of the SEBI De listing Regulations.

Please find enclosed a copy of the "Letter of Offer" (including Bid Forms and Securities Transfer From) for your records. Same will be dispatched to public shareholders on or before 27<sup>th</sup> October 2022.

In terms of Regulation 16(3) of the SEBI Delisting Regulations, the Letter of Offer will. also be made available on our website at <u>www.inltd.co.in</u>.

We request you to disseminate the same on your website at the earliest.

Conti...

# INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

:2:

Yours faithfully,

For International Constructions Limited

Nitesh Kumar Jain Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Encl: as above

#### THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

This Letter of Offer is being sent to vou as a Public Shareholder of International Constructions Limited as on the Specified Date (as defined below) in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021, as amended. If the Public Shareholders require any clarifications regarding the actions to be taken, they may consult their stock brokers or investment consultants or the Manager or the Registrar to the Offer. In case you have recently sold your Equity Shares in the Company, please hand over this Letter of Offer and the accompanying documents to the member of the stock exchange through whom the sale was affected.

**LETTER OF OFFER** for voluntary delisting of Equity Shares of INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (CIN) : L45309KA1983PLC038816, **REGISTERED OFFICE: Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower C, 3rd floor,** HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru, KA - 560017 IN, CONTACT DETAILS: TEL. NO.: +91-80-49891637, EMAIL ID: info@addgroup.co.in; WEBSITE: www.inltd.co.in COMPANY **SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER: Nitesh Kumar Jain** 

LETTER OF OFFER TO THE PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS FOR VOLUNTARY DELISTING OF EQUITY SHARES OF INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED ("THE COMPANY")

BY

MRS. PRITI DEVI SETHI ("ACQUIRER") ALONG WITH ANIL KUMAR SETHI HUF ("PAC 1"), DEEPAK SETHI ("PAC 2") AND ZOOM INDUSTRIAL SERVICES LIMITED ("PAC 3"), PERSON ACTING IN CONCERT WITH THE ACQUIRER WHO ARE FORMING A PART OF THE PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP OF THE COMPANY, AS DEFINED UNDER THE SEBI (ISSUE OF CAPITAL & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) **REGULATIONS, 2018 (COLLECTIVELY REFERRED TO AS THE "PACS"), TO THE** PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS (AS DEFINED BELOW) EXPRESSING THEIR INTENTION TO : (A) ACQUIRE ALL THE EQUITY SHARES THAT ARE HELD BY PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS; AND (B) CONSEQUENTLY VOLUNTARILY DELIST THE EQUITY SHARES FROM THE CONCERNED STOCK EXCHANGE WHERE THE EQUITY SHARES ARE PRESENTLY LISTED, NAMELY, NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED, BY MAKING A DELISTING OFFER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE SEBI (DELISTING **OF SECURITIES) REGULATIONS, 2021** ("DELISTING REGULATIONS") THROUGH THE REVERSE BOOK-BUILDING PROCESS.

The Acquirer along with PACs (as defined above) are making this Delisting Offer to the Public Shareholders of the Company pursuant to the Delisting Regulations and are inviting you to tender the Equity Shares, through the reverse book-building process in accordance with the Delisting Regulations. Note:

- If you wish to tender your Equity Shares to the Acquirer/PACs, you should read this Letter of 1. Offer and the instructions herein.
- 2. The Delisting Offer will be implemented by the Acquirer/PACs through the Stock Exchange Mechanism (defined below), as provided under the Delisting Regulations and the SEBI Circulars (defined below) to facilitate tendering of the Equity Shares by the Public Shareholders and settlement of the same, through the Stock Exchange Mechanism.
- For the implementation of the Delisting Offer, the Acquirer/PACs have appointed SKI Capital 3. Services Limited as the registered broker through whom the Acquirer/PACs would make the

purchases and settlements on account of the Delisting Offer.

- Physical Shareholders, please complete and sign the accompanying Bid Form (enclosed at the 4. end of this document) in accordance with instructions therein and in this Letter of Offer.
- Detailed procedures for the submission and settlement of Bids (defined below) are set out in 5. Section 17 and 18 of this Letter of Offer.

Floor Price: Rs. 13.26 /- (Indian Rupees Thirteen and Twenty Six Paisa)

Indicative Price: Rs. 16.50 /- (Indian Rupees Sixteen and Fifty Paisa)

Bid Opening Date: 03-11-2022

Bid Closing Date: 11-11-2022

## MANAGER TO THE DELISTING OFFER



## SKI CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED

718, Dr Joshi Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi- 110005 Contact person: Ghanisht Nagpal / Manick Wadhwa Ph. No.: 011-41189899 Email ID: icl.delisting@skicapital.net Webiste: www.skicapital.net SEBI Registration No.: INM000012768

**REGISTRAR TO THE DELISTING OFFER** 



SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, New Delhi - 110020 Contact person: Rati Gupta Ph. No.: 011-26812682 Email ID: ipo@skylinerta.com Website: www.skylinerta.com SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROPOSED TIME TABLE FOR THE DELISTING OFFER	4
RISK FACTORS	5
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS	6
1. BACKGROUND OF THE DELISTING OFFER	9
2. RATIONALE AND OBJECTIVE OF THE DELISTING OFFER	11
3. BACKGROUND OF THE ACQUIRER & PACs	12
4. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANY	14
5. PRESENT CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY	18
6. LIKELY POST DELISTING CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY.	19
7. STOCK EXCHANGE FROM WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE PROPOSED TO BE DELISTED	19
8. MANAGER TO THE DELISTING OFFER	19
9. REGISTRAR TO THE DELISTING OFFER	20
10. DETAILS OF THE BUYING BROKER	20
11. INFORMATION REGARDING STOCK MARKET DATA OF THE COMPANY	20
12. DETERMINATION OF THE FLOOR PRICE AND INDICATIVE PRICE	21
13. DETERMINATION OF THE DISCOVERED PRICE AND EXIT PRICE	22
14. MINIMUM ACCEPTANCE AND SUCCESS CONDITIONS OF THE DELISTING OFFER	24
15. ACQUISITION WINDOW FACILITY	25
16. DATES OF OPENING AND CLOSING OF BID PERIOD	25
17. PROCESS AND METHODOLOGY FOR BIDDING	26
18. METHOD OF SETTLEMENT	29
19. PERIOD FOR WHICH THE DELISTING OFFER SHALL BE VALID	30
20. DETAILS OF THE ESCROW ACCOUNT AND THE AMOUNT DEPOSITED THEREIN	30
21. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY APPROVALS	31
22. NOTE ON TAXATION	32
23. CERTIFICATION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY	33
24. DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION	33
25. COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER OF THE COMPANY	34
26. GENERAL DISCLAIMERS	34

#### PROPOSED TIME TABLE FOR THE DELISTING OFFER

For the process of the Delisting Offer, the tentative schedule of activity will be asset out below

Activity	Day and Date
Resolution for approval of the Delisting Offer	
passed by the Board of Directors of the Company	10 <sup>th</sup> August, 2022
Company	10 August, 2022
Resolution for approval of the Delisting Offer	
passed by the Shareholders	14 <sup>th</sup> September, 2022
pussed by the Shareholders	
Date of receipt of the In-principle Approval	
from NSE	
	20th October, 2022
Specified Date for determining the names of	
Public Shareholders to whom the Letter of Offer	
shall be sent*	21 <sup>st</sup> October, 2022
Date of publication of the Detailed Public	
Announcement	21 <sup>st</sup> October, 2022
Last date for dispatch of the Letter of Offer/Bid	
Forms to the Public Shareholders as on	27th October 2022
Specified Date Last date of publication of recommendation by	27th October, 2022
Committee of Independent Directors of the	
Company	1st November, 2022
Bid Opening Date (bid starts at market hours)	3rd November, 2022
Last date for upward revision or withdrawal of	
Bids	10th November, 2022
Bid Closing Date (bid closes at market hours)	11th November, 2022
Last date for announcement of counter offer	15th November, 2022
Last date for Public Announcement regarding	
success and failure of the Delisting Offer	15th November, 2022
Proposed date for payment of consideration if	, 
Exit Price is higher than the Indicative Price#	22nd November, 2022
Proposed date for release of lien/return of Equity	
Shares to the Public Shareholders in case of	
failure of the Delisting Offer	11th November, 2022
Proposed date for release of lien/return of Equity	
Shares to the Public Shareholders in case of	
Discovered Price not being accepted	15th November, 2022

\*The Specified Date is only for the purpose of determining the names of the Public Shareholders to whom the Letter of Offer will be sent. However, all Public Shareholders are eligible to participate in the Delisting Offer by submitting their Bid in Acquisition Window Facility to a stock broker registered on NSE on or before Bid Closing Date.

#Subject to acceptance of the Discovered Price or Offer a price higher than the Discovered Price by the Acquirer.

Note: All dates are subject to change and depend on, inter alia, obtaining the requisite statutory and regulatory approvals, as may be applicable. Changes to the proposed timetable, if any, will be notified to Public Shareholders by way of corrigendum in all the newspapers in which the DPA has been published.

#### **RISK FACTORS**

The risk factors set out below do not relate to the present or future business operations of the Company or any other matters and are neither exhaustive nor intended to constitute a complete or comprehensive analysis of the risks involved in or associated with the participation by any Public Shareholder in the Delisting Offer. Each Public Shareholder of the Company is hereby advised to consult with legal, financial, tax, investment or other independent advisers and consultants for advice on the further risks with respect to each such Public Shareholder's participation in the Delisting Offer and related sale and transfer of Offer Shares of the Company to the Acquirer/PACs.

Risk factors related to the transaction, the proposed Delisting Offer and the probable risks involved in associating with the Acquirer and PACs:

- The Delisting Offer may be delayed beyond the schedule of activities indicated in this Letter of Offer for reasons beyond the control of the Acquirer/PACs and the Company. Consequently, the payment of consideration to the Public Shareholders whose Offer Shares are accepted under this Delisting Offer as well as release of lien on the Offer Shares not accepted under this Delisting Offer by the Acquirer/PACs may get delayed.
- 2. The Acquirer, PACs and the Manager to the Delisting Offer accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Letter of Offer or in the Detailed Public Announcement or in advertisements or other materials issued by or at the instance of the Acquirer/PACs or the Manager to the Delisting Offer and anyone placing reliance on any other source of information, would be doing so at his/ her/ their own risk.
- **3.** The Acquirer, PACs and the Manager to the Delisting Offer do not accept responsibility for the statements made with respect to the Company (pertaining to the information which has been compiled from information published or provided by the Company, or publicly available sources, and such information has not been independently verified by the Acquirer or the Manager to the Delisting Offer) in connection with the Delisting Offer as set out in the Detailed Public Announcement and this Letter of Offer or any corrigendum issued by or at the instance of the Acquirer/PACs or the Manager to the Delisting Offer.
- 4. This Delisting Offer is subject to completion risks as would be applicable to similar transactions.

### **DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS**

TERM	DEFINITION		
Act	The Companies Act, 2013, as amended.		
Acquirer	Priti Devi Sethi		
Acquisition Window	The separate acquisition window in the form of web based bidding platform provided by NSE in accordance with the Stock Exchange Mechanism conducted in accordance with the Delisting Regulations and the SEBI Circulars.		
Acquisition Window Facility	Has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 15		
Audit Report	Report dated August 10, 2022 for reconciliation of share capital in terms of Regulation 10(5) read with Regulation 12(2) of the Delisting Regulations, issued by N.Jhunjhunwala & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Membership: F 6397, COP:5184		
Bid Closing Date	Close of trading hours on 11th November, 2022, being the last date of the Bid Period.		
Bid Form	Bid forms as enclosed with this Letter of Offer and specifically marked as 'BID CUM ACCEPTANCE FORM/BID FORM' and includes 'BID REVISION CUM WITHDRAWAL FORM/ BID FORM'.		
Bid Opening Date	Opening of trading hours on 3rd November, 2022, being the date on which the Bid Period commences.		
Bid Period	Bid Opening Date to Bid Closing Date, inclusive of both dates.		
Board	The board of directors of the Company.		
NSE / Designated Stock Exchange / Stock Exchange	National Stock Exchange of India Limited, the only stock exchange where the Equity Shares of the Company are currently listed.		
Company	International Constructions Limited		
Clearing Corporation	National Securities Clearing Corporation Limited.		
Counter Offer PA	Has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 17		
Counter Offer Price	Has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 17		
Delisting Offer/Offer	The offer being made by the Acquirer along with the PACs to acquire from the Public Shareholders all the Offer Shares and consequent voluntary delisting of the Equity Shares from the Stock Exchange, in accordance with the Delisting Regulations.		
Delisting Regulations	SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021, as amended from time to time.		
Detailed Public Announcement / Letter of Offer	The detailed public announcement dated 20 <sup>th</sup> October, 2022, published in newspapers on 21 <sup>st</sup> October, 2022 in accordance with Regulation 15(1) of the Delisting Regulations.		
Discovered Price	Has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 13		
DP	Depository Participant		
Due Diligence Report	The Due Diligence Report dated August 10th, 2022 issued by Heena Jaysinghani & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, a Peer Review Company Secretaries Firm in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Delisting Regulation.		
EPS	Earnings per share		
Equity Shares	Fully paid-up equity shares of the Company of a face value of $₹10/-$ each (Indian Rupees Ten Only).		
Escrow Account	Escrow account opened with the Escrow Bank in the name of 'INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED DELISTING ESCROW ACCOUNT – 00040513651'		

Escrow Amount	Has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 20		
Escrow Bank	ICICI Bank Limited		
Exit Price	Has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 13		
Exit Window	Has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 19		
Floor Price	₹13.26 (Indian Rupees Thirteen Rupees and Twenty Six Paisa only) per Equity Share		
Floor Price Certificate	Valuation report of Equity Shares issued by Mr Subodh Kumar (Registered Valuer Registration Number: IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705), dated August 10, 2022		
ICDR Regulations	SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time.		
IEPF	Investor Education and Protection Fund		
Indicative Price	₹16.50/- (Indian Rupees Sixteen Rupees and Fifty Paisa Only) per Equity Share		
Initial Public Announcement / IPA	Initial Public Announcement dated July 29, 2022 issued by the Manager to the Delisting Offer, for and on behalf of the Acquirer and PACs, to the Company expressing their intention in relation to the Delisting Offer.		
In-principle Approval	In-principle approval of NSE dated 20th October, 2022		
Letter of Offer	This Letter of Offer dated 25 <sup>th</sup> October, 2022.		
Listing Regulations	SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.		
IT Act	The Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended.		
Manager to the Delisting Offer	SKI Capital Services Limited		
Merchant Banker / Manager			
Minimum Acceptance Condition	Has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 14		
Offer Shares	908490 (Nine Lakh Eight Thousand Four Hundred Ninety) Equity Shares representing 25% of the equity share capital of the Company, held by the Public Shareholders.		
OTB	Offer To Buy.		
PAN	Permanent Account Number.		
Person acting in concert / PACs	Anil Kumar Sethi HUF ("PAC1"), Deepak Sethi ("PAC2") and Zoom Industrial Services Limited ("PAC3")		
Public Shareholders	All the shareholders other than the Acquirer, PACs and other members of the promoter group of the Company as defined under Regulation $2(1)(t)$ of the Delisting Regulations.		
Physical Shares	Offer Shares that are not in dematerialised form.		
Physical Shareholders	Public Shareholders who hold Physical Shares.		
Postal Ballot Notice	Postal Ballot Notice dated August 13 <sup>th</sup> , 2022.		
RBI	Reserve Bank of India.		
Reference Date	Has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 12		
Registrar to the Delisting Offer	Skyline Financial Services Private Limited		
Registrar to the Offer			
Residual Public Shareholders	shares in the Densting orier of whose orier shares have not over		
	acquired by the Acquirer/PACs.		

SEBI	Securities and Exchange Board of India.			
SEBI Act	Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended from time to time.			
SEBI Circulars	The following circulars issued by SEBI: (i) circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/1/2015 dated April 13, 2015 on mechanism for acquisition of shares through Stock Exchange pursuant to tender-offers under takeovers, buy back and delisting; (ii) circular no. CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2016/131 dated December 09, 2016 on streamlining the process for acquisition of shares pursuant to tender-offers made for takeovers, buy back and delisting of securities and (iii) circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR-III/CIR/P/2021/615 dated August 13, 2021 on tendering of shares in open offers, buy-back offers and delisting offers by marking lien in the demat account of the shareholders.			
Seller Member(s)	The respective stock broker of Public Shareholders registered with the Stock Exchange, through whom the Bids can be placed in the Acquisition Window during the Bid Period.			
Specified Date	The Date for the purpose of determining the name of the Public Shareholders to whom the Letter of Offer will be sent i.e. 21 <sup>st</sup> October, 2022			
Stock Exchange Mechanism	The process set out in the SEBI Circulars and more particularly explained in Section 15			
STT	Securities Transaction Tax.			
Takeover Regulations	SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time.			
TRS	Transaction Registration Slip.			
UCC	Unique Client Code.			
Working Days	Working Days shall be the working days as defined in Regulation $2(1)(ee)$ of the Delisting Regulations.			

Dear Public Shareholder,

#### Invitation to tender Equity Shares held by you in the Company

The Acquirer and PACs are pleased to invite you to tender, on the terms and subject to the conditions set out in the Delisting Regulations, the Detailed Public Announcement and this Letter of Offer, the Equity Shares held by you in the Company pursuant to the Delisting Offer made in accordance with relevant provisions of the Delisting Regulations.

#### 1. BACKGROUND OF THE DELISTING OFFER

- 1. The Company is a public limited company incorporated on August 01, 1983, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, having its registered office at Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower C 3rd floor, HAL Old Airport Road Bengaluru 560017. The Equity Shares of the Company are only listed on NSE.
- 2. The promoters of the Company presently hold 27,25,470 (Twenty Seven Lakhs Twenty Five Thousands Four Hundred Seventy) Equity Shares representing 75% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company, out of which the Acquirer who is one of the promoters of the Company presently holds 12,94,670 (Twelve Lakhs Ninety Four Thousands Six Hundred Seventy) Equity Shares representing 35.63% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company and the PACs presently hold 14,30,800 (Fourteen Lakhs Thirty Thousands Eight Hundred)Equity Shares representing 39.37% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company, out of which (a) PAC 1 holds 30,000 (Thirty Thousands) Equity Shares representing 0.83% of the paid up equity share capital of the Company (b) PAC 2 holds 8,87,100 (Eight Lakhs Eighty Seven Thousands One Hundred) Equity Shares representing 24.41% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company; (c) PAC3 holds 5,13,700 (Five Lakhs Thirteen Thousands Seven Hundred) Equity Shares representing 14.13% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company; who is forming part of promoter group in terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time ("**ICDR Regulations**").
- 3. The Acquirer along with PACs are making this Letter of Offer to acquire up to 9,08,490 (Nine Lakhs Eight Thousand Four Hundred Ninety) Equity Shares (**"Offer Shares"**) representing 25% of the total issued and paid-up equity share capital of the Company from the Public Shareholders pursuant to Part B of Chapter III read with Chapter IV of the Delisting Regulations. If the Delisting Offer is successful as described in Section 14 below, an application will be made for delisting the Equity Shares from the NSE in accordance with the provisions of the Delisting Regulations and the terms and conditions set out below and in the Letter of Offer, and any other documents relating to the Delisting Offer. Consequently, the Equity Shares shall be voluntarily delisted from the NSE.
- 4. Pursuant to the Initial Public Announcement ("**IPA**") dated July 28, 2022, the Acquirer and PACs, conveyed their intention to make the Delisting Offer to acquire the Offer Shares and to delist all the Equity Shares from the NSE in accordance with the Delisting Regulations. The receipt of the IPA was intimated by the Company to NSE on July 28, 2022.
- 5. Upon receipt of the IPA, the Company intimated to NSE on July 29, 2022, that the meeting of the board of directors of the Company to be held on 10<sup>th</sup> August, 2022, interalia, (a) to take on record and review the due diligence report of Company Secretary in terms of the Delisting Regulations; (b) consider and approve/ reject the Delisting Proposal after discussing and after taking into account various factors Company Secretary's due diligence report, and (c) to certify as per requirements of Regulation 10(4) of the SEBI Delisting Regulations, and (d) to consider other matters incidental thereto or required in terms of the Delisting Regulations including seeking shareholders approval as may be required.
- 6. The Company received a letter on August 10, 2022, from the Acquirer and PACs, informing that the floor price is ₹13.26 (Indian Rupees Thirteen Rupees and Twenty Six Paisa only) ("Floor Price") determined in accordance with Regulation 20(2) of the Delisting Regulations read with Regulation 8 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended ("Takeover Regulations") accompanied with the valuation report of Equity Shares issued by Mr Subodh Kumar (Registered Valuer Registration Number: IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705), dated August 10, 2022 ("Floor

**Price Certificate**"). Further, the Acquirer and PACs offered ₹16.50/- (Indian Rupees Sixteen Rupees and Fifty Paisa Only) per Equity Share as an indicative price for the purpose of Delisting Offer ("**Indicative Price**") in terms of Regulation 20(4) of the Delisting Regulations. The same was notified to NSE on August 10, 2022.

- 7. The board of directors of the Company (**"Board"**), in its meeting held on August 10, 2022, inter-alia, took the following decisions:
  - i. Took on record the Due Diligence Report dated August 10, 2022, issued by M/s. Heena Jaysinghani & Co, (Unique Identification Number: F011432D000778957) Peer Review Company Secretaries in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Delisting Regulation ("**Due Diligence Report**") and Audit Report for reconciliation of share capital in terms of Regulation 10(5) read with Regulation 12(2) of the Delisting Regulations, issued by N. Jhunjhunwala & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Membership: F 6397, COP:5184 ("Audit Report");
  - Based on the information available with the Company and after taking on record the Due Diligence Report and the Audit Report and in accordance with Regulation 10(4) of the Delisting Regulations, the Board certified that: (a) the Company is in compliance with the applicable provisions of securities laws; (b) the Acquirer, PACs, promoters and their related entities are in compliance with the applicable provisions of securities laws in terms of the Due Diligence Report including compliance with sub-regulation (5) of regulation 4 of the Delisting Regulations; and (c) the Delisting Offer is in the interest of the shareholders of the Company;
  - iii. After relying on the information available with the Company, the Due Diligence Report and other confirmations, the Board discussed and provided its consent to the Delisting Offer, in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Delisting Regulations subject to the consent of the shareholders of the Company through postal ballot/e-voting in accordance with Delisting Regulations and subject to any other consents and requirements under applicable laws, including any conditions as may be prescribed or imposed by any authority while granting any approvals;
  - iv. The Board approved the draft of the notice and the accompanying explanatory statement to the shareholders in the form of a postal ballot ("Postal Ballot Notice") for seeking their consent for the Delisting Offer as well as to authorise certain identified personnel of the Company for taking necessary steps to finalize the Postal ballot Notice and for undertaking allied and incidental matters in relation to the postal ballot exercise. Mr Rahul Aggarwal, Practicing Company Secretary, Membership No.: 42939, COP: 19315 was appointed as the scrutinizer in terms of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("Act") read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, to conduct the postal ballot/e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.
- 8. The outcome of the meeting of the Board was disclosed on the same day i.e., August 10, 2022, to NSE.
- 9. The Company had dispatched the notice of postal ballot to the shareholders of the Company for seeking their approval through postal ballot and e-voting on August 13, 2022. Notice of postal ballot was sent by speed-post to 88 (Eighty-Eight) shareholders whose email addresses were not registered with the Company, out of these 30 (Thirty) notices were returned undelivered.
- 10. The shareholders of the Company approved the Delisting Offer by way of special resolution in accordance with the Delisting Regulations on September 14, 2022, i.e., the last date specified for remote e-voting. The results of the postal ballot were declared on September 16, 2022, and the same was intimated to the NSE on September 16, 2022. As part of the said resolution, the votes cast by the Public Shareholders in favour of the Delisting Offer (795302 votes) are more than two times the number of votes cast by the Public Shareholders against it (1148 votes).
- 11. Further, the Company has been granted in-principle approval ("**In-principle Approval**") for the delisting of the Equity Shares of the Company from NSE vide their letter dated 20th October, 2022 in accordance with Regulation 8(3) of the Delisting Regulations.
- 12. The DPA dated 20<sup>th</sup> October, 2022 was published in the following newspapers as required under Regulation 15 (1) of the Delisting Regulations:

Newspaper Name	Language	Edition	
Financial Express	English	All India Edition	
Lakshadweep	Marathi	Mumbai Edition	
Jansatta	Hindi	All India Edition	

- 13. The Acquirer and PACs will inform the Public Shareholders of amendments or modifications, if any, to the information set out in this Letter of Offer by way of a corrigendum that will be published in the aforementioned newspapers in which the DPA was published.
- 14. The Delisting Offer is subject to the acceptance of the Discovered Price (defined below in Section 14 of this Letter of Offer), determined in accordance with the Delisting Regulations by the Acquirer and PACs. In accordance with Regulation 22 of the Delisting Regulations, the Acquirer and PACs may also, at their sole and absolute discretion, propose: (a) a price higher than the Discovered Price for the purposes of the Delisting Offer; or (b) a price which is lower than the discovered price but not less than the book value of the Company as certified by the Manager to the Delisting Offer in terms of Regulation 22(5) of the Delisting Regulations ("Counter Offer Price"). The "Exit Price" shall be: (i) the Discovered Price, if accepted by the Acquirer and PACs; or (ii) a price higher than the Discovered Price, if offered by the Acquirer and PACs at their sole and absolute discretion; or (iii) the Counter Offer Price offered by the Acquirer and PACs at their sole and absolute discretion; or (iii) the Counter Offer Price offered by the Acquirer and PACs at their sole and absolute discretion which, pursuant to acceptance and/or rejection by the Public Shareholders, results in the cumulative shareholding of the Acquirer and PACs along with the other promoters and member of the promoter group of the Company reaching 90.00% of the Equity Shares of the Company excluding Equity Shares held by such persons as mentioned in Section 14.
- 15. The Acquirer reserves the right to withdraw the Delisting Offer in certain cases as set out in Section 14 of this Letter of Offer are not fulfilled or if the approvals indicated herein are not obtained or conditions which the Acquirer considers in its sole discretion to be onerous. are imposed in respect of such approvals.
- 16. Neither the Acquirer nor any other entity belonging to the Promoter and Promoter Group of the Company shall sell Equity Shares of the Company till the completion of the Delisting Process.
- 17. As per Regulations 28 of the Delisting Regulations, the Board is required to constitute a committee of independent directors to provide its written reasoned recommendation on the Delisting Offer and such recommendations shall be published at least 2 (two) working days before the commencement of the Bid Period in the same newspapers where this Letter of Offer has been published.

#### 2. RATIONALE AND OBJECTIVE OF THE DELISTING OFFER

In terms of Regulation 8(3)(a) of the Delisting Regulations, the rationale for the Delisting Offer is as follows: The Company set Voluntarily listed on NSE on 10/07/1006

- 1. The Company got Voluntarily listed on NSE on 10/07/1996.
- 2. However, the traded turnover on NSE during the twelve calendar months preceding the calendar month in which the Initial Public Announcement was made was merely 5.74% appx. These trading patterns indicate that the Company is thinly traded, and the Public Shareholders may be able to derive a better value and put the money so received, in better valued and traded shares.
- 3. Obtain full ownership of the Company, which will, in turn, provide enhanced operational flexibility to support the Company's business.
- 4. Save compliance costs and reduction in dedicating management time to comply with the requirements associated with the continued listing, which can be refocused on the Company's Business; and
- 5. Provide an exit opportunity to the Public Shareholders of the Company.

#### 3. BACKGROUND OF THE ACQUIRER & PACs

- 1. The Acquirer belongs to the Promoter Group of the Company.
- 2. Mrs Priti Devi Sethi, Acquirer, is an Indian resident, residing at Villa No. B-9, Yamlur Home Owner Association, Epsilon Ventures, Yemalur Main Road, Bangalore 560037. She is a promoter, and non-executive director of the Company and as of this Letter of Offer holds 1294670 (Twelve Lakh Ninety-Four Thousand Six Hundred Seventy) Equity Shares representing 35.627% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. She is a commerce graduate from Patna University. She is involved in business and undertaking various non-profit organization social activities.
- 3. Anil Kumar Sethi HUF, (PAC1), is a Hindu Undivided Family, formed at Villa No. B-9, Yamlur Home Owner Association, Epsilon Ventures, Yemalur Main Road, Bangalore 560037. It forms a part of the promoter and promoter group of the Company and as of the date of this Letter of Offer holds 30000 (Thirty Thousand) Equity Shares representing 0.826% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. It's Karta is Mr Anil Kumar Sethi, who is a Promoter and Chairman of the Company.
- 4. Deepak Sethi, (PAC2), is an Indian resident, residing at B-9, Annaxi, Epsilon Ventures, Yemlur Main Road, Marathalli, Bangalore 560037. He is a part of the promoter and promoter group of the Company and as of the date of this Letter of Offer holds 887100 (Eight Lakh Eighty-Seven Thousand One Hundred) Equity Shares representing 24.411% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. He holds a Master's in Business Administration degree from Deakin University, Australia. He is involved in various companies and business interests.
- 5. Zoom Industrial Services Limited, (PAC 3), is an Indian limited company formed under the Companies Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation dated 02 March, 1981 bearing CIN number L74140WB1981PLC033392 with its registered office at 113, Park Street, 7th Floor, Kolkata, West Bengal, India. It forms a part of the promoter and promoter group of the Company and as on the date of this Letter of Offer holds 513700 (Five Lakh Thirteen Thousand Seven Hundred) Equity Shares representing 14.136% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.
- 6. As on the date of Letter of Offer, the capital structure of PAC 3 comprises the authorised share capital of ₹2,65,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Two Crores Sixty Five Lakhs Only) consisting of 26,50,000 (Twenty Six Lakhs Fifty Thousand) equity shares of the face value of ₹10/-(Indian Rupees Ten Only) each. The issued, subscribed and fully paid-up equity share capital is ₹2,61,15,200/- (Indian Rupees Two Crores Sixty One Lakhs Fifteen Thousand Two Hundred Only) consisting of 26,11,520 (Twenty Six Lakh Eleven Thousand Five Hundred Twenty) equity shares of the face value of ₹10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each.
- 7. Shareholding pattern of PAC 3 as on the date of Letter of Offer is as below:

Category of shareholder	Nos. of shareholders	Total nos. shares held	Shareholding as a % of total no. of shares
Promoter & Promoter Group	17	1093200	41.861
Public	720	1518320	58.139
TOTAL	737	2611520	100

8. Directors of PAC 3 as on the date of Letter of Offer are as below:

Sr. No	Name	DIN	No. of Equity Shares held in the company
1	Ajay Jain	02450049	5
2	Dwijendra Prosad Mukherjee	07792869	-
3	Shalin Jain	08389442	-

9. Promoters of PAC 3 as on the date of Letter of Offer is as below:

Sr. No.	Name	No. of fully paid-up equity shares held	Total nos. shares held	Shareholding as a % of total no. of shares
1	Abhinandan Sethi	33000	33000	1.264
2	Deepak Sethi	117000	117000	4.48
3	Harshvardhan Sethi	74000	74000	2.834
4	Maina Devi Sethi	69350	69350	2.656
5	Nupur Jain	35000	35000	1.34
6	Punam Chand Sethi	45000	45000	1.723
7	Sandhya Rani Sethi	73930	73930	2.831
8	Santosh Devi Gangwal	7950	7950	0.304
9	Subhash Chand Sethi	36000	36000	1.379
10	Suman Sethi	41000	41000	1.57
11	Sushil Kumar Sethi	35000	35000	1.34
12	Sushil Kumar Sethi	68220	68220	2.612
13	20th Century Engineering Limited	10000	10000	0.383
14	International Constructions Limited	46000	46000	1.761
15	Sonal Agencies Pvt Ltd	700	700	0.027
16	SPM Engineers Limited	5200	5200	0.199
17	SML India Limited	395850	395850	15.158

- 10. The Acquirer, PACs, and other members of the promoter/promoter group of the Company have not traded in the Equity Shares of the Company during the 6 (six) months preceding the date of the IPA viz., July 28, 2022, in adherence to Regulation 8(1) of the Delisting Regulations. Further, the Acquirer, PACs and all the other members of the promoter/promoter group of the Company have not sold any Equity Shares of the Company from the date of the IPA viz., July 28, 2022, and have undertaken not to sell any Equity Shares during the delisting period i.e. from the date of IPA till the date of payment of consideration to the Public Shareholders, in accordance with Regulation 30(5) of the Delisting Regulations.
- 11. The Acquirer, PACs and other members of the promoter/promoter group of the Company are not prohibited by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") from dealing in securities, in terms of directions issued under Section 11B of the SEBI Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act") or any other regulations made under the SEBI Act.
- 12. The Acquirer and PACs hereby invite all the Public Shareholders to bid the Offer Shares pursuant to a reverse book building process through an acquisition window facility, i.e., a separate acquisition window in the form

of a web-based bidding platform provided by NSE, ("Acquisition Window Facility" or "Offer to Buy" "OTB")", conducted in accordance with the terms of the Delisting Regulations and the SEBI Circulars (defined below).

13. The Acquirer along with the PACs have, as detailed in Section 20 below, made available all the required funds necessary to fulfil the obligations of the Acquirer and PACs under the Delisting Offer.

#### 4. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANY

- International Constructions Limited was incorporated on August 01, 1983, under the provision of the Companies Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation dated August 01, 1983. The registered office of the Company is located at Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower C 3rd floor, HAL Old Airport Road Bengaluru - 560017. The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on NSE. The Corporate Identification No. is L45309KA1983PLC038816; Tel.No.: +91-80-49891637; E-mail ID:info@addgroup.co.in; Website: www.inltd.co.in
- 2. The Company is engaged in the business of job contract works and financing activities.
- 3. As on the date of this Letter of Offer, the Company does not have any partly paid-up shares or convertible securities in the nature of warrants or fully or partly convertible debentures/preference shares etc. or employee stock options which are convertible into Equity Shares at a later date. The Equity Shares held by the Acquirer, PACs and other members of the promoter/promoter group of the Company are not locked in.

Name and DIN of the Director	Designation	Date of appointment	No. of Equity Shares held in the Company
Anil Kumar Sethi Din: 00035800	Chairman Managing Director	15/11/2013	-
Priti Devi Sethi Din: 00635846	Non-Executive Director	25/03/2015	1294670
Amitava Basu Din: 03335477	Independent Non-Executive Director	18/06/2013	-
Rajesh Kandoi Din: 07434686	Independent Non-Executive Director	14/02/2019	3

4. As on the date of this Letter of Offer, the members of the Board are as under:

5. A brief summary of the consolidated audited financial of the Company for the financial years ended on March 31, 2022, March 31,2021 and March31, 2020 is as below:

(Amount	in	'000)
---------	----	-------

TABLE I – CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET				
Particulars	As at 31st March 2022	As at 31st March 2021	As at 31st March 2020	
ASSETS				
Non-current assets				
(a) Property, plant and equipment	5,19,494.70	5,46,364.42	5,34,907.16	
(b) Intangible Assets	2,160.53	2,822.63		
(c) Financial assets				
- Investments	2,14,658.42	1,55,647.32	1,78,045.71	
- Loans	71,945.62	1,841.07	4,144.18	
- Other Non Current Financial Asset	15,338.35	23,763.22		
	8,23,597.62	7,30,438.66	7,17,097.04	

Current assets			
(a) Inventories	3,887.99	6,362.44	
(b) Financial assets	0,001.00	0,002	
- Trade Receivables	30,044.19	81,496.32	574.73
- Cash and Cash Equivalents	2,841.49	790.99	1,477.10
- Bank balances other than cash and	2,041.45	750.55	1,477.10
cash equivalent	2,137.84	2,537.84	-
- Loans	98,500.00	-	2,500.00
- Other current financial Assets	10,227.32	10,201.83	8,441.37
(c) Other current assets	25,803.38	9,486.24	6,882.27
(d) Current Income tax Receivable	20,000.00	3)100121	0,002.27
(Net)	10,696.37	15,430.36	15,759.50
<u> </u>	1,84,138.59	1,26,306.03	35,634.97
Total Assets	10,07,736.21	8,56,744.69	7,52,732.02
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			
Equity			
(a) Equity Share capital	36,339.60	36,339.60	36,339.60
(b) Other Equity			
-Equity Components of Financial			
instrument	72,920.59	72,920.59	72,920.59
-Other Equity	2,38,624.78	1,99,244.78	1,57,577.42
Equity attributable to equity holders			
of the parent	3,47,884.97	3,08,504.97	2,66,837.61
(c) Non-controlling interests	2,58,754.64	2,57,355.31	2,57,393.90
Total Equity	6,06,639.61	5,65,860.28	5,24,231.51
LIABILITIES			
Non-current liabilities			
(a) Financial liabilities			
- Borrowings	54,250.46	48,144.53	42,247.33
(b) Provisions	608.03	3,933.87	209.05
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities	36,291.52	36,272.12	31,207.90
(d) Other Non Current Liabilities		48,549.93	59,116.27
	21,424.50 I		-,
· ·	21,424.50 1,12,574.51	1,36,900.45	1,32,780.55
Current liabilities			1,32,780.55
· · ·			1,32,780.55
Current liabilities			<b>1,32,780.55</b> 47,406.67
Current liabilities (a) Financial liabilities	1,12,574.51	1,36,900.45	
Current liabilities (a) Financial liabilities - Borrowings - Other Financial Liabilities	<b>1,12,574.51</b> 89,827.33	<b>1,36,900.45</b> 61,501.38	
Current liabilities (a) Financial liabilities - Borrowings - Other Financial Liabilities - Trade payables	<b>1,12,574.51</b> 89,827.33	<b>1,36,900.45</b> 61,501.38	
Current liabilities (a) Financial liabilities - Borrowings - Other Financial Liabilities	<b>1,12,574.51</b> 89,827.33	<b>1,36,900.45</b> 61,501.38	
Current liabilities (a) Financial liabilities - Borrowings - Other Financial Liabilities - Trade payables Total outstanding dues of micro and	1,12,574.51 89,827.33 38,833.77	<b>1,36,900.45</b> 61,501.38 13,711.34	

(c) Provisions	690.31	911.02	2.63
	2,88,522.09	1,53,983.96	95,719.96
Total liabilities	4,01,096.59	2,90,884.41	2,28,500.51
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES	10,07,736.21	8,56,744.69	7,52,732.02

TABLE II – CONSOLID	TABLE II – CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT					
Particulars	For the year ended 31st March 2022	For the year ended 31st March 2021	For the year ended 31st March 2020			
Income						
Revenue from						
Operations	69,144.83	1,63,810.64	-			
Other Income	23,476.48	15,919.11	13,684.46			
Total Income	92,621.32	1,79,729.75	13,684.46			
Expenses						
Purchase of stock in trade	5,717.29	8,635.60	_			
Change in	5,/1/.25	8,055.00	-			
inventories of Stock						
in trade and Spare	1,132.59	953.23				
parts Employee benefits	1,152.59	955.25	-			
expense	55,224.25	60,696.12	16,496.28			
Finance Cost	18,378.72	16,129.11	11,514.23			
Depreciation and Amortisation						
expenses	7,311.26	14,395.29	5,707.89			
Other Expenses	19,571.11	19,085.63	8,533.47			
Total Expenses	1,07,335.22	1,19,894.98	42,251.86			
Profit / (Loss) before share of (profit) / loss of associate and joint venture, exceptional items and tax	-14,713.91	59,834.76	-28,567.41			
Share of profit / (loss) from investment in associates and joint						
ventures	4,485.02	-17,296.79	-62,432.84			
Adjustment for Non-controlling						
interests	179.99	4,732.80	2,156.53			
Exceptional Items	-	-	-			
Profit/(loss) before						
tax from continuing	10 049 01		00 040 74			
operations	-10,048.91	47,270.77	-88,843.71			

Tax Expenses			
Current tax	-	3,550.29	3,015.89
Income tax for			
earlier year	-1,499.01	7,415.29	552.15
Reversal of MAT			
Credit	-	1,754.75	
Deferred tax	-12,177.74	12,358.72	-24,405.67
Income Tax Expense	-13,676.74	25,079.05	-20,837.62
Profit for the year from Continuing Operations	3,627.83	22,191.73	-68,006.09
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)			
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:			
Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans	1,194.44	-1,719.07	120.03
Income Tax effect	-300.62	433.85	-30.82
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:			
Remeasurement of			
Investments at Fair	44.040.00		25 274 44
Value	44,012.93	-2,882.30	-25,774.41
Income Tax effect	-9,154.58	599.52	5,367.54
Other Comprehensive Income for the year	35,752.17	-3,568.00	-20,317.66
Total Comprehensive Income for the year	39,380.00	18,623.73	-88,323.75
Earnings per share			
- Basic and Diluted	1.00	6.11	-18.71

- Face Value of			
Share (Rs)	10	10	10

# Note: Figures given above are extracted from a certificate dated 27<sup>th</sup> September 2022 issued by M/s G.L.Kothari & Co., Chartered Accountants.

6. The Company is not prohibited by SEBI, from dealing in securities, in terms of the direction issued under section 11B of the SEBI Act or under any of the regulations made under the SEBI Act.

#### 5. PRESENT CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY

- 1. As on the date of this Letter of Offer, the authorized capital of the Company is ₹10,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Crore Only) comprising of Equity Share capital of ₹ 3,63,39,600 /- (Indian Rupees Three Crore Sixty-Three Lakh Thirty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred Only), consisting of 36,33,960 Equity Shares of the face value of ₹10/- per Equity Share.
- 2. The equity share capital structure of the Company as on the date of this Letter of Offer is as under :

lPaid up Equity Shares of the Company	No. of Equity Shares/Voting Rights	% of Equity Share Capital / Voting Rights
Fully paid -up Equity Shares	36,33,960	100%
Partly paid -up Equity Shares	nil	nil
Total paid-up Equity Shares	36,33,960	100%
Total Voting Rights in Company	36,33,960	100%

There are no outstanding preference shares, any partly paid or any convertible instruments.

3. The shareholding pattern of the Company as on June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Category	Category Of Shareholder	Nos. Of Shareholders	No. Of Fully Paid Up Equity Shares Held	Total Nos. Shares Held	Shareholdi ng As A % Of Total No. Of Shares
А	Promoter & Promoter Group	4	27,25,470	27,25,47 0	75
В	Public	617	9,08,490	9,08,490	25
С	Non Promoter- Non Public	-	-	-	-
C1	Shares underlying DRs	-	-	-	-
C2	Shares held by Employee Trusts	-	-	-	-
	Total	621	36,33,960	36,33,96 0	100

4. The aggregate shareholding of the Acquirer with PACs and other members of the promoter and promoter group of the Company and of the directors of the Acquirer where the Acquirer is a company and of persons who are in control of the Company as on the date of Letter of Offer:

#### 5. Shareholding details of Acquirer and PACs in the Company as on the date of Letter of Offer:

Name	Category of equity shareholder		No. of fully paid-up Equity Shares held	Shareholding As A % Of Total No. Of Shares
Anil Kumar Sethi Huf	Promoter Promoter Group	and	30000	0.826
Deepak Sethi	Promoter Promoter Group	and	887100	24.411
Priti Devi Sethi	Promoter Promoter Group	and	1294670	35.627
Zoom Industrial Services Ltd	Promoter Promoter Group	and	513700	14.136
Total			2725470	75%

# 6. LIKELY POST DELISTING CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY.

1. The likely post-delisting shareholding pattern of the Company, assuming all the Offer Shares are acquired pursuant to this Delisting offer, is set out as below:

Category of equity shareholder	No. of fully paid-up Equity Shares held	Shareholding As A % Of Total No. Of Shares
Acquirer and PACs along with other members of the promoter group in terms of ICDR Regulations.	3633960	100%
Public	Nil	Nil
Total*	3633960	100%

\*Assuming all shares are tendered and accepted.

#### 7. STOCK EXCHANGE FROM WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE PROPOSED TO BE DELISTED

- 1. The Equity Shares of the Company are presently listed on NSE (script symbol: SUBCAPCITY). The ISIN of the Company's Equity Shares is INE845C01016.
- 2. The Acquirer and PACs are seeking to voluntary delist the Equity Shares of the Company from the NSE. The Company has received the In-principle Approval for delisting from NSE on 20th October, 2022.
- 3. No application for listing shall be made in respect of any Equity Shares which have been delisted pursuant to this Delisting Offer for a period of 3 (three) years from the date of delisting.
- 4. Any application for listing made in future by the Company after the aforementioned period in respect of delisted Equity Shares shall be deemed to be an application for fresh listing of such Equity Shares and shall be subject to the then prevailing laws relating to the listing of equity shares of unlisted companies.
- 5. The Acquirer and PACs propose to acquire the Offer Shares pursuant to a reverse book building process through an acquisition window facility, i.e., a separate acquisition window in the form of a web-based bidding platform provided by NSE, in accordance with the stock exchange mechanism ("Acquisition Window Facility" or "OTB"), conducted in accordance with the terms of the Delisting Regulations and the SEBI Circulars.

#### 8. MANAGER TO THE DELISTING OFFER

 The Acquirer and PACs have appointed SKI Capital Services Limited as the Manager to the Delisting Offer. Contact details of Manager to Delisting Offer are as follows: Contact Person Name: Ghanisht Nagpal / Manick Wadhwa

Telephone No.: 011-41189899

Email ID: icl.delisting@skicapital.net

Address: 718, Dr Joshi Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi- 110005

Website: https://www.skicapital.net/

SEBI Registration No.: INM000012768

#### 9. REGISTRAR TO THE DELISTING OFFER

 The Acquirer and PACs have appointed Skyline Financial Services Private Limited as the registrar to the Delisting Offer ("Registrar to Delisting Offer").
 Contact details of Registrar to Delisting Offer are as follows: Contact Person Name: Rati Gupta

Telephone No.: 011-26812682

Email ID: ipo@skylinerta.com

Address: D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, New Delhi - 110020

Website: https://www.skylinerta.com

SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241

#### **10. DETAILS OF THE BUYING BROKER**

1. For the implementation of the Delisting Offer, the Acquirer and PACs have appointed SKI Capital Services Limited as the registered broker to the Acquirer and PACs (**"Buying Broker"**) through whom the purchases and settlement on account of the Delisting Offer would be made by the Acquirer and/or PACs.

Contact details of Buying Broker are as follows: Contact Person Name: Manick Wadhwa

Telephone No.: 011-41189899

EmailID: icl.delisting@skicapital.net

Address: 718 Dr Joshi Road Karol Bagh, New Delhi 110005 Website: https://www.skicapital.net/

NSE Membership No.: INZ000188835

#### 11. INFORMATION REGARDING STOCK MARKET DATA OF THE COMPANY

- 1. The Equity Shares of the Company are currently listed on NSE only.
- 2. The high, low and average market price of the Equity Shares (in Rupees per Equity Share) for the preceding three financial years and monthly high and low prices for the six months preceding the date of this Letter of Offer and the corresponding volumes on the Stock Exchange viz. NSE are as follows:

Preceding 3 years:

Year	High Price(₹)	Low	Average	No.	of
		Price(₹)	Price	Equity	

				Shares Traded
April 01, 2019 to March 31, 2020	16.40	4.75	10.58	2,25,028
April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021	44.95	5.00	24.98	1,57,508
April 01,2021 to March 31, 2022	70.25	14.70	42.48	1,59,274

**Preceding 6(six)months:** 

Month	High Price(₹)	Low Price(₹)	Average Price	No. of Equity Shares Traded
April-2022	111.15	44.10	77.625	20,275
May-2022	122.50	60.50	91.5	29,080
June-2022	113.10	64.45	88.775	34,905
July-2022	214.10	93.25	153.675	64,356
August-2022	331.95	189.05	260.5	93,280
September-2022	229	112.55	170.775	59,026

Source: www.nseindia.com

For the purposes of the above table:

High price is the maximum of monthly high price and low price is the minimum of monthly low price of the Equity Shares of the Company for the year, or the month as the case may. Average price is the average of high prices and low prices during the period.

#### **12. DETERMINATION OF THE FLOOR PRICE AND INDICATIVE PRICE**

- 1. The Acquirer and PACs propose to acquire the Equity Shares from the Public Shareholders pursuant to the reverse book building process established in terms of Schedule II of the Delisting Regulations.
- 2. The trading turnover based on the trading volume of the Equity Shares on NSE during the period from 01<sup>th</sup> August, 2021 to 31<sup>th</sup> July, 2022, (twelve calendar months preceding the calendar month of the reference date) is as under:

Stock Exchange	Total traded volume	Total no. of Equity Shares outstanding during the period	Trading Turnover (As a percentage of total no. of Equity Shares outstanding)
NSE	264299	3633960	7.27%

- 3. The Equity Shares of the Company are currently listed and traded on NSE only. As on the Reference Date the Equity Shares are infrequently traded on NSE within the meaning of explanation to Regulation 2(1)(j) of the Takeover Regulations.
- 4. As required under Regulation 20(2) of the Delisting Regulations, the Floor Price of the Delisting Offer is required to be determined in terms of Regulation 8 of the Takeover Regulations. As per Regulation 20(3) of the Delisting Regulations, the reference date for computing the Floor Price would be the date on which the recognized stock exchange was notified of the board meeting in which the delisting proposal would be considered and approved, i.e. Wednesday, August 10, 2022 ("Reference Date").
- 5. The Floor Price of ₹13.26 (Indian Rupees Thirteen Twenty Six Paisa Only) per Equity Share of face value of ₹10/-(Indian Rupees Ten Only) each is justified in terms of Regulation 8(2) of the Takeover Regulations, after considering the following facts:

Particulars	Amount(₹)
the highest negotiated price per share of the target company for any acquisition under the agreement attracting the obligation to make a public announcement of an open offer.	Not Applicable
the volume-weighted average price paid or payable for acquisitions, whether by the acquirer or by any person acting in concert with him, during the fifty-two weeks immediately preceding the date of the public announcement.	Not Applicable
the highest price paid or payable for any acquisition, whether by the acquirer or by any person acting in concert with him, during the twenty-six weeks immediately preceding the date of the public announcement.	Not Applicable
the volume-weighted average market price of such shares for a period of sixty trading days immediately preceding the date of the public announcement as traded on the stock exchange where the maximum volume of trading in the shares of the target company are recorded during such period, provided such shares are frequently traded.	Not Applicable
where the shares are not frequently traded, the price determined by the acquirer and the manager to the open offer taking into account valuation parameters including, book value, comparable trading multiples, and such other parameters as are customary for valuation of shares of such companies.*	₹ 13.26
the per share value computed under sub-regulation 5, if applicable.	Not Applicable

\* Floor Price Certificate issued by Mr Subodh Kumar (Registered Valuer Registration Number: IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705), dated August 10, 2022.

6. The Acquirer and PACs have submitted a Floor Price Certificate issued by Mr Subodh Kumar (Registered Valuer Registration Number: IBBI/RV/05/2019/1705), dated August 10, 2022, determining the fair value of the Equity Shares of the Company as₹13.26(Thirteen Rupees and Twenty-Six Paisa Only) per Equity Share in accordance with the Regulation 20 of Delisting Regulations read with Regulation 8 of Takeover Regulations. Accordingly, the Acquirer and PACs have fixed ₹16.50/- (Sixteen Rupees and Fifty Paisa Only) as the indicative price for the purpose of the Delisting Offer, in terms of Regulation 20(4) of the Delisting Regulations ("Indicative Price"), which was notified to NSE on August 10, 2022.

#### 13. DETERMINATION OF THE DISCOVERED PRICE AND EXIT PRICE

- 1. The Acquirer and PACs propose to acquire the Offer Shares pursuant to the reverse book building process through Acquisition Window Facility or OTB, conducted in accordance with the terms of the Delisting Regulations and the SEBI Circulars.
- 2. The minimum price per Offer Share payable by the Acquirer and PACs pursuant to the Delisting Offer, shall be determined in accordance with the Delisting Regulations and pursuant to the reverse book building process specified in Schedule II of the Delisting Regulations, which shall not be lower than the Indicative Price and will be the price at which the shareholding of the Acquirer and PACs along with the other members of the promoter group of the Company reaches 90% of the total paid-up equity share capital of the Company excluding (a.) Equity Shares held by a custodian(s)holding shares against which depository receipts have been issued overseas if any; (b.) Equity Shares held by a trust set up for implementing an employee benefits scheme under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, if any; and (c.) Equity Shares held by inactive shareholders such as vanishing companies, struck off companies, shares transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund account and Equity Shares held in terms of Regulation 39 (4) read with Schedule VI of the Listing Regulations, if any("Discovered Price").
- 3. The cut-off date for determination of inactive shareholders is 21th October, 2022 the date on which the Detailed Public Announcement is published.

- 4. The Acquirer and PACs shall be bound to accept the Equity Shares tendered or offered in the Delisting Offer at the Discovered Price if the Discovered Price determined through the reverse book building process is equal to the Indicative Price.
- 5. The Acquirer and PACs shall be bound to accept the Equity Shares under Delisting Offer, at the Indicative Price, if any offered by the Public Shareholders, even if the price determined through the reverse book building process is higher than the Floor Price but less than the Indicative Price in terms of Regulation 22 (2) of Delisting Regulations.
- 6. The Acquirer and PACs are under no obligation to accept the Discovered Price if it is higher than the Indicative Price. The Acquirer and PACs may at their discretion, (i) acquire the Equity Shares at the Discovered Price; or (ii) offer a price higher than the Discovered Price, (at their sole and absolute discretion); or (iii) make a counter offer at the Counter Offer Price in accordance with the Delisting Regulations.
- 7. The **"Exit Price"** shall be:
  - i. The Discovered Price, if accepted by the Acquirer and PACs; or
  - ii. A price higher than the Discovered Price, if, offered by the Acquirer and PACs in their sole and absolute discretion; or
  - iii. The Counter Offer Price offered by the Acquirer and PACs in their sole and absolute discretion which, pursuant to acceptance and/or rejection by the Public Shareholders, results in the cumulative shareholding of the Acquirer and PACs along with other members of the promoter group reaching 90% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company excluding such Equity Shares in terms of Regulation21(a)of the Delisting Regulations.
- 8. The Acquirer and PACs shall announce the Discovered Price and their decision to accept or reject the Discovered Price or make a Counter Offer Price, as applicable, in the same newspapers in which this Letter of Offer is published, in accordance with the schedule of activities set out in Section 21 below.
- 9. Once the Acquirer and PACs announce the Exit Price, the Acquirer and PACs will acquire, subject to the terms and conditions set out in this Letter of Offer and the Letter of Offer including but not limited to fulfilment of the conditions mentioned in Section 14 below all the Equity Shares validly tendered up to and equal to the Exit Price for a cash consideration equal to the Exit Price for each Equity Share tendered and ensure that:
  - i. in case of the Discovered Price being equal to the Indicative Price or in case the Acquirer and PACs are bound to accept the Equity Shares in the Delisting Offer as mentioned in Section 13 above, the payment shall be made through the secondary market settlement mechanism; or (ii) in case the Discovered Price is higher than the Indicative Price, the payment shall be made within 5(five) working days from the date of the Public Announcement as specified in Section 13 above of this Letter of Offer. The Acquirer will not accept Equity Shares tendered at a price that exceeds the Exit Price.
- 10. If the Acquirer and PACs do not accept the Discovered Price, the Acquirer and PACs may, at their sole discretion, make a counter offer to the Public Shareholders within 2 working days of the closure of the Bid Period and the Acquirer and PACs shall ensure compliance with the provisions of Delisting Regulations in accordance with the timelines provided in Schedule IV of the Delisting Regulations.
- 11. In the event the Acquirer and PACs do not accept the Discovered Price under Regulation 22 of the Delisting Regulations or there is a failure of the Delisting Offer in terms of Regulation 23 of the Delisting Regulations then:
  - i. the Acquirer and PACs will have no right or obligation to acquire the Offer Shares tendered in the Delisting Offer;
  - ii. the Acquirer through the Manager to the Offer, will within 2 working days of closure of the Bid Period announce such rejection of the Discovered Price or failure of the Delisting Offer, through an announcement in all newspapers where this Letter of Offer is published;
  - iii. No final application for delisting shall be made to the Stock Exchange i.e. NSE;
  - iv. The lien on the Equity Shares tendered/offered in terms of Schedule II or Schedule IV of Delisting Regulations as the case may be, shall be released to such Public Shareholder(s) (i) on the date of

disclosure of the outcome of the reverse book building process under sub-regulation(3) of regulation 17 of Delisting Regulations if the minimum number of shares as provided under clause(a) of regulation 21 of these regulations are not tendered/offered; (ii) on the date of making a public announcement for the failure of the delisting offer under sub-regulation(4) of Regulation 17 of Delisting Regulations if the price discovered through the reverse book building process is rejected by the Acquirer and PACs; (iii) in accordance with Schedule IV of Delisting Regulations if a counter offer has been made by the Acquirer and PACs;

- 12. the Acquirer and/or PACs will bear all the expenses relating to the Delisting Offer;
- 13. 99.00% (Ninety-nine per cent) of the amount lying in the escrow account shall be released to the Acquirer and PACs within one working day from the date of the public announcement of the failure of the Delisting Offer, and the balance 1% (one per cent) shall be released post return of the Equity Shares to the Public Shareholders or confirmation of revocation of lien marked on their Equity Shares by the Manager to the Offer;
- 14. The Acquirer and PACs shall not make another delisting offer until the expiry of six months (i) from the date of disclosure of the outcome of the reverse book building process under sub-regulation (3) of Regulation 17 of Delisting Regulations if the minimum number of shares as provided under clause (a) of Regulation 21 of Delisting Regulations are not tendered / offered; (ii) from the date of making the public announcement for the failure of the delisting offer under sub-regulation(4) of Regulation17 of Delisting Regulations if the price is covered through the reverse book building process is rejected by the Acquirer and PACs;(iii)from the date of making the public announcement for the failure of a counter offer as provided under Schedule IV of Delisting Regulations; and
- 15. The Escrow Account (as defined below) opened in accordance with Regulation 14 of the Delisting Regulations shall be closed after the release of the balance of 1% (one percent) in terms of Regulation 14(9) of the Delisting Regulations.

#### 14. MINIMUM ACCEPTANCE AND SUCCESS CONDITIONS OF THE DELISTING OFFER

The acquisition of the Offer Shares by the Acquirer and/or PACs pursuant to the Delisting Offer and the successful delisting of the Company pursuant to the Delisting Offer are conditional upon:

- 1. The Acquirer and PACs, in their sole and absolute discretion, either accepting the Discovered Price or offering a price higher than the Discovered Price or offering a Counter Offer Price which, pursuant to acceptance and/ or rejection by Public Shareholders, results in the shareholding of the Acquirer and PACs along with the members of the promoter group of the Company reaching 90% of the paid-up Equity Shares of the Company excluding:
- i. Equity Shares held by a custodian(s) holding shares against which depository receipts have been issued overseas;
- ii. Equity Shares held by a trust set up for implementing an employee benefits scheme under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; and
- Equity Shares held by inactive shareholders such as vanishing companies, struck-off companies, shares transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund account and shares held in terms of Regulation 39(4) read with Schedule VI of the Listing Regulations.
- iv. It may be noted that notwithstanding anything contained in this Letter of Offer, the Acquirer and PACs reserve the right to accept or reject the Discovered Price if it is higher than the Indicative Price.
- 2. A minimum number of 5,45,094 Offer Shares being tendered at or below the Exit Price, or such other higher number of Equity Shares prior to the closure of Bid Period i.e. on the Bid Closing Date so as to cause the cumulative number of the Equity Shares held by the Acquirer and PACs along with the other members of the promoter group of the Company taken together with the Equity Shares acquired by the Acquirer and PACs under the Delisting Offer to be equal to or in excess of 32,70,564 Equity Shares constituting 90% of the paid-up Equity Share of the Company as per Regulation 21(a) of the Delisting Regulations;
- 3. The Acquirer and PACs obtaining all statutory approvals, as applicable and

4. There being no amendments to the Delisting Regulations or other applicable laws or regulations or conditions imposed by any regulatory/statutory authority/body or order from a court or competent authority which would in the sole opinion of the Acquirer and PACs, prejudice the Acquirer and PACs from proceeding with the Delisting Offer.

#### **15. ACQUISITION WINDOW FACILITY**

- Pursuant to the Delisting Regulations, the Acquirer and PACs are required to facilitate tendering of the Equity Shares held by the Public Shareholders and the settlement of the same, through the stock exchange mechanism provided by SEBI. SEBI, vide its circular dated April 13, 2015, on 'Mechanism for acquisition of shares through Stock Exchange pursuant to Tender-Offers under Takeovers, Buy Back and Delisting 'and its circular dated December 9, 2016, on 'Streamlining the process for Acquisition of Shares pursuant to Tender- Offers made for Takeovers, Buyback and Delisting of Securities' and its circular dated August 13, 2021, on 'Tendering of shares in open offers, buy-back offers and delisting offers by marking lien in the Demat account of the shareholders' ("SEBI Circulars") sets out the procedure for tendering and settlement of Equity Shares through the Stock Exchange ("Stock Exchange Mechanism").
- 2. Further, the SEBI Circulars provide that the Stock Exchange shall take necessary steps and put in place the necessary infrastructure and systems for implementation of the Stock Exchange Mechanism and to ensure compliance with the requirements of the SEBI Circulars. Pursuant to the SEBI Circulars, the Stock Exchange has issued guidelines detailing the mechanism for the acquisition of shares through the Stock Exchange.
- 3. As such, the Acquirer and PACs have opted to avail of the Acquisition Window Facility provided by NSE, in compliance with the SEBI Circulars. NSE is the designated stock exchange for the purpose of the Delisting Offer.
- 4. The cumulative quantity tendered shall be displayed on the website of NSE at specific intervals during the Bid Period and the outcome of the reverse book building process shall be announced within 2 (Two) hours of the closure of the Bid Period.

#### 16. DATES OF OPENING AND CLOSING OF BID PERIOD

- 1. All the Public Shareholders holding Equity Shares are eligible to participate in the reverse book building process by tendering, the whole or part of the Equity Shares held by them through the Acquisition Window Facility or OTB at or above the Floor Price.
- 2. The period during which the Public Shareholders may tender their Equity Shares pursuant to the reverse book building process ("Bid Period") shall commence on 3rd November, 2022 ("Bid Opening Date") and close on 11th November, 2022 ("Bid Closing Date"). During the Bid Period, Bids will be placed in the Acquisition Window Facility by the Public Shareholders through their respective stock brokers registered with NSE ("Seller Member") during normal trading hours of the secondary market on or before the Bid Closing Date. Any change to the Bid Period will be notified by way of a corrigendum/addendum in the newspapers in which this Letter of Offer is published.
- 3. The Public Shareholders should note that the Bids are required to be uploaded in the Acquisition Window Facility or OTB on or before the Bid Closing Date for being eligible for participation in the Delisting Offer. Bids not uploaded in the Acquisition Window Facility or OTB will not be considered for delisting purposes and will be rejected.
- 4. The Public Shareholders should submit their bids through Seller Member. Thus, Public Shareholders should not send Bids to the Company/Acquirer/PACs/Manager to the Offer/Registrar to the Offer.
- 5. Bids received after the close of trading hours on the Bid Closing Date may not be considered for the purpose of determining the Discovered Price payable for the Equity Shares by the Acquirer pursuant to the reverse book building process. The Public Shareholders may withdraw or revise their Bids upwards not

later than 1(one) day before the closure of the Bid Period. Downward revision of the Bids shall not be permitted.

#### **17. PROCESS AND METHODOLOGY FOR BIDDING**

- 1. The Letter of Offer (along with necessary forms and instructions) inviting the Public Shareholders to tender their Equity Shares to the Acquirer and PACs will be dispatched to the Public Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company and to the owner of the Equity Shares whose names appear as beneficiaries on the records of the depository at the close of business hours of a day not later than one working day from the date of the Detailed Public Announcement. ("Specified Date").
- 2. For further details on the schedule of activities, please refer to Section 21 below.
- 3. In the event of an accidental omission to dispatch the Letter of Offer or non-receipt of the Letter of Offer by any Public Shareholder, such Public Shareholder may obtain a copy of the Letter of Offer by writing to the Registrar to the Offer at their address given in Section 9 of this Letter of Offer, clearly marking the envelope **"ICL Delisting Offer 2022"**. Alternatively, the Public Shareholders may obtain copies of the Letter of Offer from the website of the NSE i.e., <u>www.nseindia.com</u>, or, from the website of the Registrar to the Offer, at https://www.skylinerta.com from the website of the Company, at https://www.inltd.co.in/ or the Manager to the Offer, at www.skicapital.net.
- 4. The Delisting Offer is open to all the Public Shareholders of the Company holding Equity Shares either in physical and/or dematerialized form.
- 5. During the Bid Period, the Bids will be placed in the **Acquisition Window Facility or OTB** by the Public Shareholders through their respective Seller Member during normal trading hours of the secondary market. The Seller Members can enter orders for Equity Shares which are held in dematerialized form as well as physical form.
- 6. All Public Shareholders can tender their Offer Shares during the Bid Period.
- 7. Procedure to be followed by Public Shareholders holding Offer Shares in dematerialized form:
  - i. Public Shareholders who desire to tender their Offer Shares in the electronic form under the Delisting Offer would have to do so through their respective Seller Member by indicating the details of the Offer Shares they intend to tender under the Delisting Offer. The Public Shareholders should not send Bids to the Company/Acquirer/PACs/Manager/Registrar to Offer.
  - **ii.** The Seller Member would be required to tender the number of Equity Shares by using the settlement number and the procedure prescribed by the National Securities Clearing Corporation Limited ("Clearing Corporation") `and a lien shall be marked against the Equity Shares of the shareholder and the same shall be validated at the time of order entry.
  - iii. The details of the settlement number shall be informed in the circular/ notice that will be issued by NSE/Clearing Corporation before the Bid Opening Date.
  - iv. In case, the Public Shareholders' Demat Account is held with one depository and clearing member pool and Clearing Corporation accounts are held with another depository, Equity Shares shall be blocked in the Public Shareholders' Demat account at the source depository during the Bid Period. Inter Depository Tender Offer ("IDT") instructions shall be initiated by the Public Shareholders at the source depository to the clearing member/ Clearing Corporation account at the target depository. Source Depository shall block the Public Shareholder's Equity Shares (i.e., transfer from free balance to blocked balance) and send an IDT message to the target depository for confirming the creation of a lien. Details of Equity Shares blocked in the Public Shareholder's Demat account shall be provided by the target depository to the Clearing Corporation.
  - v. For custodian participant orders for Equity Shares in dematerialized form, early pay-in is mandatory prior to confirmation of the relevant order by the custodian. The custodian shall either confirm or reject

the orders within the normal trading hours during the tender offer open period, except for the last day of the tender offer which shall be up to 4.00 p.m. (However bids will be accepted only up to 3:30 p.m.). Thereafter, all unconfirmed orders shall be deemed to be rejected. For all confirmed custodian participant orders, any modification to an order shall be deemed to revoke the custodian confirmation relating to such order and the revised order shall be sent to the custodian again for confirmation.

- vi. Upon placing the Bid, a Seller Member shall provide a Transaction Registration Slip ("TRS") generated by the exchange bidding system to the Public Shareholder. The TRS will contain the details of the order submitted such as Bid ID No., DP ID, Client ID, no. of Offer Shares tendered and the price at which the Bid was placed.
- vii. Please note that submission of Bid Form and TRS is not mandatorily required in the case of Equity Shares held in dematerialised form.
- viii. The Clearing Corporation will hold in trust the lien marked on the Offer Shares until the Acquirer/PACs complete their obligations under the Delisting Offer in accordance with the Delisting Regulations and SEBI Circulars.
- ix. The Public Shareholders will have to ensure that they keep the depository participant ("DP") account active. Further, Public Shareholders will have to ensure that they keep the saving account attached to the DP account active and updated to receive credit remittance upon acceptance of the Offer Shares tendered by them.
- x. In case of non-receipt of the Letter of Offer/Bid Form, Public Shareholders holding Equity Shares in dematerialized form can make an application in writing on plain paper, signed by the respective Public Shareholder, stating name and address, Client ID, DP name/ID, beneficiary account number and number of Equity Shares tendered for the Delisting Offer. Public Shareholders will be required to approach their respective Seller Member and have to ensure that their Bid is entered by their Seller Member in the electronic platform to be made available by NSE before the Bid Closing Date.
- xi. Procedure to be followed by Public Shareholders holding Offer Shares in the Physical form:
  - a) In accordance with the SEBI circular no. SEBVHO/CFO/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/144 dated July 31, 2020 read with SEBI Circular No. SEBVHO/MIRSD/MIRSDRTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 3, 2021 all the Public Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in physical form are allowed to tender their shares in the Delisting Offer. However, such tendering shall be as per the provisions of the Delisting Regulations.
  - **b)** The Public Shareholders who hold Offer Shares in physical form and intend to participate in the Delisting Offer will be required to approach their respective Seller Member along with the complete set of documents for verification procedures to be carried out including as below:
    - **I.** original share certificate(s);
    - **II.** valid share transfer form(s) viz. Form SH-4 duly filled and signed by the transferors (i.e., by all registered shareholders in the same order and as per the specimen signatures registered with the Company/registrar and transfer agent of the Company) and duly witnessed at the appropriate place authorizing the transfer. Attestation, where required, (thumb impressions, signature difference, etc.) should be done by a magistrate/notary public/bank manager under their official seal;
    - **III.** self-attested permanent account number("PAN") card copy ( in case of joint holders, PAN card copy of all transferors); Bid Form duly signed (by all Public Shareholders in cases where Offer Shares are held in joint names) in the same order in which they hold the Offer Shares;
    - **IV.** Declaration by joint holders consenting to tender Offer Shares in the Delisting Offer, if applicable; and
    - V. any other relevant documents such as power of attorney, corporate authorization (including board resolution/specimen signature), notarized copy of death certificate and succession certificate or probated will, if the original shareholder has deceased, etc., as applicable. In addition, if the address of the Public Shareholder has undergone a change from the address registered in the register of members of the Company, the Public Shareholder would be required to submit a self-attested copy of proof of address

consisting of any one of the following documents: valid Aadhaar card, Voter Identity Card or Passport.

- xii. Based on the documents mentioned above, the concerned Seller Member shall place the bid on behalf of the Public Shareholder holding Equity Shares in physical form who wishes to tender Equity Shares in the Delisting Offer using the Acquisition Window Facility of the Stock Exchange. Upon placing the Bid, the Seller Member shall provide a TRS generated by the exchange bidding system to the Public Shareholder. The TRS will contain the details of the order submitted such as folio no., certificate no., distinctive no., no. of Offer Shares tendered and the price at which the Bid was placed.
- xiii. The Seller Member/Public Shareholder should ensure the documents (as mentioned in this Section 17 above are delivered along with TRS either by registered post or courier or by hand delivery to the Registrar to the Offer (at the address mentioned in Section 9 above) before the last date of Bid Closing date. The envelope should be marked as "ICL-Delisting Offer 2022".
- xiv. Public Shareholders holding Offer Shares in physical form should note that the Offer Shares will not be accepted unless the complete set of documents is submitted. Acceptance of the Offer Shares by the Acquirer shall be subject to verification of documents and the verification of physical certificates shall be completed on the day on which they are received by the Registrar to the Offer. The Registrar to the Offer will verify such Bids based on the documents submitted on a daily basis. Once the Registrar to the Offer confirms the Bids, they will be treated as 'confirmed bids'. Bids of Public Shareholders whose original share certificate(s) and other documents (as mentioned in this paragraph) along with TRS are not received by the Registrar to the Offer before the last date of Bid Closing date shall be liable to be rejected.
- xv. In case of non-receipt of the Letter of Offer/Bid Form, Public Shareholders holding Offer Shares in physical form can make an application in writing on plain paper, signed by the respective Public Shareholder, stating name and address, folio no., share certificate no., no. of Offer Shares tendered for the Delisting Offer and the distinctive nos. thereof, enclosing the original share certificate(s) and other documents (as mentioned in Section 17 above). Public Shareholders will be required to approach their respective Seller Member and have to ensure that their Bid is entered by their Seller Member in the electronic platform to be made available by NSE, before the Bid Closing Date.
- xvi. The Registrar to the Offer will hold in trust the share certificate(s) and other documents until the Acquirer/PACs complete their obligations under the Delisting Offer in accordance with the Delisting Regulations.
- xvii. Please note that submission of Bid Form and TRS along with original share certificate(s), valid share transfer form(s) and other documents (as mentioned in Section 17 above) is mandatorily required in case of Equity Shares held in physical form and the same to be received by the Registrar to the Offer before the last date of Bid Closing date.
- xviii. If the Public Shareholder(s)do not have the Seller Member, then that Public Shareholder (s) can approach any stock broker registered with NSE and can make a bid by using a quick unique client code ("UCC") facility through that stockbroker registered with NSE after submitting the details as may be required by the stock broker in compliance with the applicable SEBI regulations. In case the Public Shareholder(s) are unable to register using the quick UCC facility through any other NSE registered stockbroker, Public Shareholder(s) may approach the Buyer Broker i.e. SKI Capital Services Limited to place their bids.
- xix. Public Shareholders, who have tendered their Offer Shares by submitting Bids pursuant to the terms of this Letter of Offer and the Letter of Offer, may withdraw or revise their Bids upwards not later than 1 (one) day before the Bid Closing Date. Downward revision of Bids shall not be permitted. Any such request for revision or withdrawal of the Bids should be made by the Public Shareholder through their respective Seller Member, through whom the original Bid was placed, not later than 1 (one) day before the Bid Closing Date. Any such request for revision or withdrawal of Bids received after normal trading hours of the secondary market 1 (one) day before the Bid Closing Date will not be accepted. Any such request for withdrawal or upward revision should not be made to the Company, Acquirer, PACs, Registrar to the Offer or Manager to the Offer.

- xx. The Confirmed Cumulative Quantity tendered shall be made available on the NSE's website i.e https://www.nseindia.com the trading session and will be updated at specific intervals during the Bid Period.
- xxi. The Offer Shares to be acquired under the Delisting Offer are to be acquired free from all liens, charges, and encumbrances and together with all rights attached thereto. Offer Shares that are subject to any lien, charge or encumbrances are liable to be rejected.
- xxii. Public Shareholders holding Offer Shares under multiple folios are eligible to participate in the Delisting Offer.
- xxiii. In terms of Regulation 22(4) of the Delisting Regulations, the Acquirer and PACs are entitled (but not obligated) to make a counter offer at the Counter Offer Price (i.e., a price to be intimated by the Acquirer and PACs which is lower than the Discovered Price but not less than the book value of the Company as certified by the Manager to the Offer), at their sole and absolute discretion. The counter offer is required to be announced by issuing a public announcement of the counter offer ("Counter Offer PA") within 2 working days of the Bid Closing Date. The Counter Offer PA will contain inter alia details of the Counter Offer Price, the book value per Equity Share, the revised schedule of activities and the procedure for participation and settlement in the counter offer. In this regard, Public Shareholders are requested to note that, if a counter offer is made:
  - 1. All Offer Shares tendered by Public Shareholders during the Bid Period and not withdrawn as per Section 17, along with Offer Shares which are additionally tendered by them during the counter offer, will be considered as having been tendered in the counter offer at the Counter Offer Price.
  - 2. Public Shareholders who have tendered Offer Shares during the Bid Period and thereafter wish to withdraw from participating in the counter offer (in part or full) have the right to do so within 10 working days from the date of issuance of the Counter Offer PA. Any such request for withdrawal should be made by the Public Shareholder through their respective Seller Member through whom the original Bid was placed. Any such request for withdrawal received after normal trading hours of the secondary market on the 10th working day from the date of issuance of the Counter Offer PA will not be accepted.
  - 3. Offer Shares which have not been tendered by Public Shareholder during the Bid Period can be tendered in the counter offer in accordance with the procedure for tendering that will be set out in the Counter Offer PA.

#### **18. METHOD OF SETTLEMENT**

Upon finalization of the basis of acceptance as per Delisting Regulations:

- 1. The settlement of trades shall be carried out in a manner similar to the settlement of trades in the secondary market. The Acquirer/PACs shall pay the consideration payable towards the purchase of the Offer Shares accepted during the Delisting Offer, to the Buying Broker who in turn will transfer the funds to the Clearing Corporation, on or before the pay-in date for settlement as per the secondary market mechanism. For the Offer Shares acquired in dematerialised form, the Public Shareholders will receive the consideration in their bank account attached to the depository account from the Clearing Corporation. If bank account details of any Public Shareholder are not available or if the fund transfer instruction is rejected by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) or the relevant bank due to any reason then the amount payable to the relevant Public Shareholder will be transferred to the concerned Seller Members for onward transfer to such Public Shareholder. For the Offer Shares acquired in physical form, the Clearing Corporation will release the funds to the Seller Member as per the secondary market mechanism for onward transfer to Public Shareholders.
- 2. In case of certain client types viz. non-resident Indians, non-resident clients etc. (where there are specific RBI and other regulatory requirements pertaining to funds pay-out) who do not opt to settle through custodians, the funds pay-out will be given to their respective Seller Members settlement accounts for releasing the same to their respective Public Shareholders account onward. For this purpose, the client-type details will be collected from the depositories whereas funds pay-out pertaining to the bids settled through custodians will be

transferred to the settlement bank account of the custodian, each in accordance with the applicable mechanism prescribed by NSE and the Clearing Corporation from time to time.

- 3. The Offer Shares acquired in dematerialised form would either be transferred directly to the account of either of the Acquirer and PACs provided it is indicated by the Buyer Broker or it will be transferred by the Buyer Broker to the account of either of the Acquirer and PACs on receipt of the Offer Shares pursuant to the clearing and settlement mechanism of NSE. Offer Shares acquired in physical form will be transferred directly to the Acquirer and PACs by the Registrar to the Offer.
- 4. Upon finalization of the entitlement, only the accepted quantity of Equity Shares shall be debited from the Demat account of the Public Shareholders. In case of unaccepted dematerialised Offer Shares, if any, tendered by the Public Shareholders, the lien marked against unaccepted Offer Shares shall be released by the Clearing Corporation, as part of the exchange pay-out process.
- 5. Offer Shares tendered in physical form will be returned to the respective Public Shareholders directly by Registrar to the Offer.
- 6. The Seller Member would issue a contract note and pay the consideration to the respective Public Shareholder whose Offer Shares are accepted under the Delisting Offer. The Buying Broker would also issue a contract note to the Acquirer/PACs for the Offer Shares accepted under the Delisting Offer.
- 7. Public Shareholders who intend to participate in the Delisting Offer should consult their respective Seller Member for payment of any cost, charges and expenses (including brokerage) that may be levied by the Seller Member upon the Public Shareholders for tendering their Offer Shares in the Delisting Offer (secondary market transaction). The consideration received by the Public Shareholders from their respective Seller Member, in respect of accepted Offer Shares, could be net of such costs, charges and expenses (including brokerage) and the Acquirer/PACs, the Company, the Manager to the Offer and the Registrar to the Offer accept no responsibility to bear or pay such additional cost, charges and expenses (including brokerage) incurred by the Public Shareholders.
- 8. If the price payable in terms of Regulation 24(1) of the Delisting Regulations is not paid to all the shareholders within the time specified thereunder, Acquirer/PACs shall be liable to pay interest at the rate of ten per cent per annum to all the Public Shareholders, whose Offer Shares have been accepted in the Delisting Offer, as per Regulation 24(2) of the Delisting Regulations. However, in case the delay was not attributable to any act or omission of the Acquirer/PACs or was caused due to circumstances beyond the control of the Acquirer/PACs, SEBI may grant a waiver from the payment of such interest.

#### 19. PERIOD FOR WHICH THE DELISTING OFFER SHALL BE VALID

- 1. The Public Shareholders may submit their Bids to the Seller Member during the Bid Period. Additionally, once the Equity Shares have been delisted from the NSE, the Public Shareholders who either do not tender their Equity Shares in the Delisting Offer or whose Offer Shares have not been acquired by the Acquirer and PACs because the price quoted by them was higher than the Exit Price ("Residual Public Shareholders") may offer their Offer Shares for sale to the Acquirer and PACs at the Exit Price for a period of one year following the date of the delisting of the Equity Shares from the NSE ("Exit Window"). A separate offer letter in this regard will be sent to the Residual Public Shareholders explaining the procedure for tendering their Offer Shares. Such Residual Public Shareholders may tender their Offer Shares by submitting the required documents to the Registrar to the Offer during the Exit Window.
- 2. The Acquirer and PACs shall ensure that the rights of the Residual Shareholders are protected and shall be responsible for compliance with Regulation 27 of the Delisting Regulations and the Stock Exchange shall monitor the compliance of the same.

#### 20. DETAILS OF THE ESCROW ACCOUNT AND THE AMOUNT DEPOSITED THEREIN

1. The estimated consideration payable under the Delisting Regulations, being the indicative price of ₹16.50 / (Indian Rupees Sixteen and Fifty Paisa Only) per Equity Share of the Company multiplied by the number of

Offer Shares, is 1,49,90,085/- (Indian Rupees One Crore Forty-Nine Lakh Ninety Thousand and Eighty-Five only)("Escrow Amount").

- 2. In accordance with Regulations 14 (1) and 14(5) of the Delisting Regulations, the Acquirer, ICICI Bank Limited, a banker to an Offer registered with SEBI ("Escrow Bank") and the Manager to the Delisting Offer have entered into an escrow agreement dated August 23, 2022 pursuant to which the Acquirer has opened an escrow account in the name of "INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED DELISTING ESCROW ACCOUNT "with the Escrow Bank at their branch at Mumbai ("Escrow Account") and has deposited therein 100% (One Hundred Percent) of the Escrow Amount in the form of cash.
- 3. The Manager to the Delisting Offer has been solely authorized by the Acquirer to operate and realize the value of the Escrow Account in accordance with Delisting Regulations.
- 4. On the determination of the Exit Price and making of the public announcement under Regulation 15 of the Delisting Regulations, the Acquirer and PACs shall ensure compliance with Regulation14(4) of the Delisting Regulations.
- 5. In the event that the Acquirer and PACs accept the Discovered Price or offer a price higher than the Discovered Price or offer the Counter Offer Price, the Acquirer and PACs shall increase the amount lying to the credit of the Escrow Account to the extent necessary to pay Public Shareholders whose Equity Shares are validly accepted, the consideration at the Exit Price, which shall be used for payment to the Public Shareholders who have validly tendered Offer Shares in the Delisting Offer.

#### 21. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY APPROVALS

- 1. The Public Shareholders of the Company have accorded their consent by way of a special resolution passed on September 14, 2022 i.e., the last date specified for remote e-voting, in respect of delisting of Equity Shares from the NSE, in accordance with the Delisting Regulations. The results of the postal ballot were announced on September 16th, 2022 and the same were intimated to the NSE on September 16,2022.
- 2. NSE has given its In-principle Approval for delisting of Equity Shares vide letter dated 20th October ,2022.
- 3. To the best of the Acquirer and PACs knowledge, as on the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no statutory or regulatory approvals required to acquire the Offer Shares and to implement the Delisting Offer, other than as indicated above. If any statutory or regulatory approvals become applicable, the acquisition of the Offer Shares by the Acquirer and PACs and the Delisting Offer will be subject to receipt of such statutory or regulatory approvals.
- 4. If the Public Shareholders who are not persons resident in India (including non-resident Indians, overseas corporate bodies and foreign portfolio investors) had required any approvals (including from the RBI or any other regulatory body) in respect of the Equity Shares held by them, they will be required to submit such previous approvals, that they would have obtained for holding the Offer Shares, to tender the Equity Shares held by them in this Delisting Offer, along with the other documents required to be submitted to along with the Bid. In the event such approvals are not submitted, the Acquirer and PACs reserve the right to reject such Equity Shares tendered in the Offer.
- 5. It shall be the responsibility of the Public Shareholders tendering Offer Shares in the Delisting Offer to obtain all requisite approvals (including corporate, statutory or regulatory approvals), if any, prior to tendering the Offer Shares held by them in the Delisting Offer, and the Acquirer shall take no responsibility for the same. The Public Shareholders should attach a copy of any such approval(s) to the Bid Form, wherever applicable.
- 6. The Acquirer and PACs reserve the right not to proceed with or withdraw the Delisting Offer in the event the conditions mentioned in Section 14 are not fulfilled and if any of the requisite statutory approvals are not obtained or conditions which the Acquirer and PACs consider in their sole and absolute discretion to be onerous are imposed in respect of such approvals.
- 7. In the event that receipt of the requisite statutory and regulatory approvals are delayed, the Acquirer and PACs may, with such permission as may be required, make changes to the proposed timetable or may delay the

Delisting Offer and any such change shall be intimated by the Acquirer and PACs by issuing an appropriate corrigendum in all the newspapers in which this Letter of Offer has been published.

#### **22. NOTE ON TAXATION**

- 1. Under current Indian tax laws and regulations, capital gains arising from the sale of the equity shares of an Indian company are generally taxable in India.
- 2. Capital gain arising from the sale of listed equity shares in a company made on a recognized stock exchange on or after October 1, 2004, and on which STT was paid at the time of sale, was earlier exempt from tax provided that the equity shares were held for more than 12 months. The Finance Act, 2017 amended Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended ("IT Act") to provide that the said exemption was available only if STT is paid both at the time of purchase and sale of such equity shares, subject to certain exceptions notified by the Central Government of India.
- 3. The Finance Act, 2018 has withdrawn the above capital gain tax exemption with effect from April 1, 2018, for any transfer of listed equity shares in a company, held for more than 12 months, on a recognized stock exchange occurring on or after April 1, 2018, the capital gain exceeding 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakhs Only) are now taxable at a rate of 10%, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions. Further, if investments were made on or before January 31, 2018, a method of determining the cost of acquisition of such investments has been specifically laid down.
- 4. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the equity shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months or less which are sold, will be subject to short term capital gains tax @15% provided the transaction is chargeable to STT.
- 5. Tax deduction of source:
  - a) In **case of resident shareholders:** In absence of any specific provision under the IT Act, the Acquirer/PACs shall not deduct tax on the consideration payable to resident shareholders pursuant to the Delisting Offer.
  - b) In the **case of non-resident shareholders:** Under the existing Indian tax laws, any sum paid to a non-resident which is chargeable to tax under the provisions of IT Act is subject to deduction of tax at source, except for capital gains realized by the foreign portfolio investors or such gains/income which is exempt from tax. Since the acquisition of Offer Shares pursuant to the delisting process is through the stock exchange mechanism, the Acquirer/PACs will not be able to withhold any taxes, and thus the Acquirer/PACs believe that the responsibility of withholding/discharge of the taxes due on such gains (if any) is solely on the custodians/authorized dealers/non-resident shareholders without recourse to the Acquirer/PACs.
  - c) It is therefore important that the non-resident shareholders consult their custodian/authorized dealers/tax advisors appropriately and immediately pay taxes in India (either through deduction at source or otherwise). In the event the Acquirer/PACs in concert with them are held liable for the shareholder, the same shall be to the account of the shareholder and to that extent the Acquirer/PACs are entitled to be indemnified.
  - d) Post delisting, the Equity Shares would be treated as unlisted shares and therefore, capital gain on sale of such unlisted Equity Shares (held for more than 24 months) would be taxable at 20% (plus surcharge and health and education cess) for residents in India and at 10% (plus surcharge and health and education cess) for non-resident in India. For Offer Shares held for 24 months or less, capital gain would be taxable at ordinary rate applicable for the shareholder. The provision of gain up to January 31, 2018, being grandfathered would not be applicable and therefore the cost of acquisition for Residual Public Shareholders would be price paid by Residual Public Shareholder for acquisition of Offer Shares. Please note while the resident shareholders are allowed the benefit of indexation on their original cost of acquisition, no such benefit is applicable for non-resident shareholders.
  - e) On purchase of Offer Shares from non-resident Residual Public Shareholders, the Acquirer/PACs would be required to deduct tax at source from the sale consideration unless the Residual Public Shareholder obtain a Nil Deduction Certificate from the tax authorities and furnish the same to the pay or prior to the remittance of the sale consideration. The amount of taxes deducted and deposited

by the Acquirer/PACs can be claimed as credit by the Residual Public Shareholder against its final tax liability.

- f) The above tax rates are subject to applicable rate of surcharge, health and education cess. The tax rate and other provisions may undergo changes.
- g) Shareholders are advised to consult their tax advisor for the treatment that may be given by their respective income tax assessing authorities in their case and the appropriate course of action that they should take. The judicial and the administrative interpretation thereof, are subject to change or modification by subsequent legislative, regulatory, administrative or judicial decisions, any such change could have different income tax implications. This note on taxation sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner only and is not a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the disposal of equity shares. The implications are also dependent on the shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the provision of the relevant sections under the relevant tax laws, the Acquirer/PACs neither accept nor hold any responsibility for any tax liability arising to any shareholders as are as on of the Delisting Offer.

#### 23. CERTIFICATION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors of the Company has certified that:

- 1. The Company has not raised any funds by issuance of securities during the last five years immediately preceding the date of this Letter of Offer;
- 2. All material information which is required to be disclosed under the provisions of the continuous listing requirements under the relevant equity listing agreement entered into between the Company and the Stock Exchange and/or the provisions of Listing Regulations, as amended have been disclosed to the Stock Exchange viz. NSE where the Equity Shares of the Company are listed;
- 3. The Company is in compliance with the applicable provisions of securities laws;
- 4. The Acquirer and PACs or their related entities have not carried out any transactions to facilitate the success of the Delisting Offer which is not in compliance with the provisions of sub-regulation (5) of regulation 4 of the Delisting Regulations; and
- 5. The Delisting Offer is in the interest of the Public Shareholders of the Company.

#### 24. DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the Corporate Office of the Manager to the Offer at 718 Dr Joshi Road Karol Bagh, New Delhi 110005 between 11.00 a.m. and 3.00 p.m. IST on any day, except Saturday, Sunday and public holidays until the Bid Closing Date.

- 1. Initial Public Announcement dated July 28,2022;
- Floor Price Certificate dated August 10, 2022 issued by Mr Subodh Kumar (Registered Valuer Registration Number: IBBI/RV/05/2019/1 1705);
- 3. Copy of the Board resolution approving the Delisting Offer of the Company dated August 10, 2022;
- 4. Due Diligence Report dated August 10<sup>th</sup>, 2022, issued by Heena Jaysinghani, M/s. Heena Jaysinghani & Co., Peer Reviewed Practicing Company Secretary;
- 5. Audit Report dated August 10<sup>th</sup>, 2022 issued by M/s. N. Jhunjhunwala & Associates, Practising Company Secretary, Membership: F 6397, COP:5184;
- 6. Certified true copy of the resolution passed by the shareholders by way of postal ballot, results of which were declared on 16<sup>th</sup> September, 2022 along with scrutinizes report;

- Copy of Cash Escrow Agreement dated 23<sup>rd</sup> August, 2022 executed between the Acquirer, PACs the Escrow Bank and Manager to the Delisting Offer;
- 8. Copy of the letters received from the Escrow Bank, confirming receipt of the Escrow Amount in the Escrow Account;
- 9. In-principle Approval received from NSE dated 20th October, 2022;
- 10. Copy of the recommendation published by the committee of independent directors of the Company in relation to the Delisting Offer, as and when published.

#### 25. COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER OF THE COMPANY

- The details of the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company are as follows: Name: Nitesh Kumar Jain Designation: Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Office Address: Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower C, 3rd Floor, HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru –560 017, India. Email ID: <u>nitesh@addgroup.co.in</u> Contact No.: +91-80-49891637
- 2. In case the Public Shareholders have any queries concerning then on receipt of credit or payment for Offer Shares or on the delisting process and procedure, they may address the same to Registrar to the Offer or Manager to the Offer.

#### **26. GENERAL DISCLAIMERS**

- 1. Every person who desires to participate in the Delisting Offer may do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the Acquirer/PACs (including its directors), the Manager to the Offer or the Company (including its directors) whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection with the Delisting Offer and tender of Offer Shares through the reverse book-building process through Acquisition Window Facility or OTB or otherwise whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or any other reason whatsoever.
- 2. For further details please refer to the Bid Form and the Bid Revision/ Withdrawal Form which will be sent to the Public Shareholders who are shareholders of the Company as on the Specified Date. This Letter of Offer is expected to be made available on the website of the Company, the website of the Manager to the Delisting Offer and the website of the NSE viz. www.nseindia.com. Public Shareholders will also be able to download the Letter of Offer, the Bid Form and the Bid Revision/ Withdrawal Form from the website of the Company, the website of the Manager to the Delisting Offer and the website of the Manager to the Delisting Offer and the Section of the Manager to the Delisting Offer and the Website of the Manager to the Delisting Offer and the website of the Manager to the Delisting Offer and the website of the NSE viz. www.nseindia.com.

Priti Devi Sethi (Acquirer)	Anil Kumar Sethi HUF (PAC 1)	Deepak Sethi (PAC 2)				
Sd/-	Sd/-	Sd/-				
For and on behalf of <b>Zoom Industrial Services Limited</b> (PAC 3)						
Dwijendra Prosad Mu	kherjee	Shalin Jain				
(DIN: 07792869)	)	(DIN: 08389442)				
Sd/-		Sd/-				

Date: 25.10.2022

Place: Bangalore

Enclosed: Bid Form and the Bid Revision/ Withdrawal Form

# BID CUM ACCEPTANCE FORM/ BID FORM THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

(In respect of the Equity Shares of the International Constructions Limited pursuant to the Delisting Offer by the Acquirer/PACs)

Please read this document along with the Detailed Public Announcement dated October 20, 2022, published on October 21, 2022 (**"Detailed Public Announcement"** / **"DPA"**) and the Letter of Offer dated October 25, 2022 (**"Letter of Offer"**) issued by SKI Capital Services Limited ('Manager to the Offer') for and on behalf of one of the promoters of the International Constructions Limited viz., Mrs. Priti Devi Sethi ("Acquirer") along with Anil Kumar Sethi HUF ("PAC 1"), Deepak Sethi ("PAC 2") and Zoom Industrial Services Limited ("PAC 3"), person acting in concert with the Acquirer who are forming a part of the promoter and promoter group of the company, as defined under the SEBI (Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (collectively referred to as the "PACs"), to the Public Shareholders (as defined below) expressing their intention to : (a) acquire all the Equity Shares that are held by public shareholders; and (b) consequently voluntarily delist the equity shares of International Constructions Limited ("Target Company") from the concerned stock exchange where the Equity Shares are presently listed, namely, National Stock Exchange of India Limited, by making a delisting offer in accordance with the provisions of the Delisting Regulations ("Delisting Proposal").

We also request you to read SEBI Circulars in relation to Stock Exchange Mechanism introduced by SEBI. The terms and conditions of the Detailed Public Announcement and the Letter of Offer are deemed to have been incorporated in and forms part of this document.

Unless otherwise defined, capitalized terms used in this Bid cum Acceptance Form/ Bid Form have the same meaning as defined in the Detailed Public Announcement and the Letter of Offer

Note: Public Shareholders should note that this Bid Form should not be sent to the Manager to the Delisting Offer or the Registrar to the Delisting Offer or to the Acquirer/PACs or to the promoter or to the Company or the Stock Exchange. Public Shareholders should further note that they should have a trading account with their broker i.e., a Seller Member as the Bids can be entered in the reverse book building process of the Stock Exchange, only through their respective Seller Member. The Seller Member would issue a contract note and pay the consideration to the respective Public Shareholder whose Offer Shares are accepted under the Delisting Offer. Please note that submission of Bid Form and TRS is not mandatorily required in case of Offer Shares held in dematerialized form.

DELISTING OFFER*					
Bid Opening Date	Thursday, 3rd November, 2022	Difference in the second of the second			
Last Date for Revision (upwards) or Withdrawal	Thursday, 10 <sup>th</sup> November, 2022	Bids can be revised and withdrawn only during normal trading hours of secondary market.			
Bid Closing Date	Friday, 11 <sup>th</sup> November, 2022	Indiket.			
Floor Price per Offer Share	Rs. 13.26 /-				
Indicative Price Per Offer Share	Rs. 16.50 /-				
Discovered Price	The price at which the shareholding of the Acquirer/PACs reaches 90% of the total Equity Shares of the Target Company, excluding such Equity Shares in terms of Regulation 21(a) of the Delisting Regulations, pursuant to reverse book building process.				
Exit Price	The Discovered Price, if accepted by the Acquirer/PACs; A price higher than the Discovered Price, if offered by the Acquirer/PACs, at its sole and absolute discretion; or The Counter Offer Price offered by the Acquirer/PACs at its sole and absolute discretion which, pursuant to acceptance and / or rejection by Public Shareholders, results in the cumulative shareholding of the Acquirer/PACs and other members of the promoter and promoter group of the Target Company reaching to 90% of the total Equity Shares of the Target Company, excluding such Equity Shares in terms of Regulation 21(a) of the				

\*The dates are subject to change, among other things, subject to the Acquirer/PACs obtaining the necessary approvals, if any, prior to the Bid Opening Date

(To be filled in by the Seller Member(s))

Name of Seller Member		
Address of Seller Member		
UCC		
Application Number	Date	

### INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

### (In respect of the Equity Shares of the International Constructions Limited pursuant to the Delisting Offer by the Acquirer/PACs)

Dear Sir(s)/Madam,

### Re: Delisting Offer to acquire the Offer Shares by the Acquirer/PACs in accordance with the Delisting Regulations.

- 1. I/ We, having read and understood the terms and conditions set out below, in the Detailed Public Announcement and in the Letter of Offer, hereby tender my/ our Offer Shares in response to the Delisting Offer.
- 2. I/ We understand that the Seller Member to whom this Bid Form is sent, is authorized to tender the Offer Shares on my/ our behalf.
- 3. I/ We understand that the lien shall be marked by the Seller Member in the demat Account for the Equity Shares tendered in the Delisting Offer. Details of Equity Shares marked as lien in the demat account shall be provided by the Depositories to Clearing Corporation.
- 4. I/ We understand that the Offer Shares tendered under the Delisting Offer shall be subject to lien in terms of SEBI Circulars, as applicable, until the time of payment of consideration, calculated at the Discovered Price/ Exit Price and / or lien is released on the unaccepted Offer Shares.
- 5. I/ We understand that, if the demat account is held with one Depository and Clearing Member pool and Clearing Corporation account is held with other depository, Equity Shares shall be blocked in the shareholders demat account at source depository during the Bid Period. Inter Depository Tender Offer ("IDT") instructions shall be initiated by the shareholders at source depository to Clearing Member/Clearing Corporation account at target Depository. Source Depository shall block the shareholder's securities (i.e. transfers from free balance to blocked balance) and sends IDT message to target Depository for confirming creation of lien. Details of shares blocked in the shareholders demat account shall be provided by the target Depository to the Clearing Corporation.
- 6. I/ We hereby understand and agree that the Clearing Corporation will release the lien on unaccepted Offer Shares in the demat account of the shareholder.
- 7. I/ We hereby understand and agree that, in terms of Section 13 of the Letter of Offer, if the Acquirer/PACs decide to make a counter offer (at their sole and absolute discretion and without any obligation to do so), the Offer Shares tendered by me/ us and not withdrawn after the issuance of the Counter Offer PA, within normal trading hours of the secondary market on the last day of the timelines prescribed in the Delisting Regulations, shall be considered as having been tendered in the counter offer at the Counter Offer Price.
- 8. I/ We hereby undertake the responsibility for the Bid Form and the Offer Shares tendered under the Delisting Offer and I/ we hereby confirm that the Acquirer/PACs, the Company, Manager to the Delisting Offer and the Registrar to the Delisting Offer shall not be liable for any delay/ loss in transit resulting in delayed receipt or non-receipt of the Bid Form along with all requisite documents, by the Seller Member, due to inaccurate/ incomplete particulars/ instructions or any reason whatsoever.
- 9. I/ We understand that this Bid is in accordance with the Delisting Regulations and all other applicable laws, by way of reverse book building process and that the Acquirer/PACs is not bound to accept the Discovered Price.
- 10. I/ We also understand that the payment of consideration will be done by the Acquirer/PACs after due verification of Bids, documents and signatures and the Acquirer/PACs will pay the consideration as per secondary market mechanism.
- 11. I/We also understand that should I/we fail to furnish all relevant documents as set out in this Bid Form, the DPA or the Letter of Offer, this Bid may be considered invalid and may be liable to be rejected or there may be delays in making payment of consideration to me/us.
- 12. I/We hereby confirm that I/we have never sold or part/dealt with, in any manner, with the Offer Shares tendered under the Delisting Offer and these Offer Shares are free from any lien, equitable interest, charges, encumbrances, 'lock-in', or a subject matter of litigation, whatsoever.
- 13. I/ We hereby confirm that the Offer Shares tendered under the Delisting Offer are free from any lien, equitable interest, charges and encumbrances.
- 14. I/We further authorize the Acquirer/PACs to return to me/us, the share certificate(s) in respect of which the Bid is found not valid or is not acceptable, specifying the reasons thereof and in the case of dematerialized Offer Shares, to the extent not accepted will be released to my/our depository account at my/our sole risk.
- 15. I/ We hereby declare that there are no restraints/ injunctions, or other orders of any nature which limits/ restricts my/ our rights to tender these Offer Shares and I/ we are the absolute and only owner of these Offer Shares and are legally entitled to tender the Offer Shares under the Delisting Offer.
- 16. I/ We hereby confirm to participate in the Delisting offer, I/ we will be solely responsible for payment to my/ our Seller Member for any cost, charges and expenses (including brokerage) that may be levied by the Seller Member on me/ us for tendering the Offer Shares in the Delisting Offer. The consideration to be received by me/ us from my/ our respective Seller Member, in respect of accepted Offer Shares, may be net of such costs, charges and expenses (including brokerage).

The Acquirer/PACs, Company, Buying Broker, Registrar to the Delisting Offer or Manager to the Delisting Offer have no responsibility to bear or pay such additional cost, charges and expenses (including brokerage) incurred solely by me/ us.

- 17. I/ We authorize the Stock Exchange, the Acquirer/PACs and Manager to the Delisting Offer, Buying Broker and the Registrar to the Delisting Offer to send the payment of consideration by NECS / RTGS / NEFT / Direct Credit as per SEBI Circulars.
- 18. I/ We undertake to immediately return the amount received by me/ us inadvertently.
- 19. By submitting this Bid Form, I/we hereby authorize the Acquirer/PACs and/or the Target Company to make such regulatory filings as may be required, in relation to the Offer Shares tendered by me/us and transferred to the Acquirer/PACs.
- 20. I/ We agree that upon due acceptance by the Acquirer/PACs of the Offer Shares tendered by me/ us under the Delisting Offer, I/ we would cease to enjoy all right, title, claim and interest whatsoever, in respect of the Offer Shares.
- 21. I/ We authorize the Acquirer/PACs to duly accept the Offer Shares so offered, which they may decide to accept in consultation with the Manager to the Delisting Offer and Registrar to the Delisting Offer and in terms of the Letter of Offer.
- 22. I/ We hereby undertake to execute any further documents, give assurance and provide assistance, which may be required in connection of the Delisting Offer and agree to abide by the decisions taken in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
- 23. I/ We acknowledge and confirm that all the particulars / statements given herein are true and correct.

Holder's details (Please use BLC	Holder's details (Please use BLOCK CAPITALS)					
	Holder	Name and Address	PAN			
Complete this box with the full name, signature and address of the holder of the Offer Shares. In case of joint holdings, full	First / Sole					
name of all the joint holders must appear in the same order as appearing in the share certificate(s)/ demat account.	Second					
	Third					
	Tel. No.:					
Contact details	Mobile No.:					
	Email ID:					

Address of the First / Sole holder : (with pin code)

	Individual	NRI (non-repatriable)
Type of investor	Hindu Undivided Family	NRI (repatriable)
(Please tick () the box to the right of the appropriate		FPI
category)	Mutual Fund	Insurance Company
	Banks/ Financial Institution	Other (please specify)
Date and place of incorporation of the holder (if applicable)		

### Details of Offer Shares held in physical form (applicable if Offer Shares are held in PHYSICAL FORM) Details of

### original share certificate(s) along with duly filled, signed transfer deed(s), as enclosed

Sr.No.	Falia Na	Folio No. Distinctive Nos.	ive Nos.	No. of Offer Shares	
51.140.	FUIIO INO.	Share Certificate(s) No.	From	То	No. of Offer Shares
1					
2					
3					
(If the sheet)	(If the space provided is inadequate, please attach a separate continuation sheet)			Total	

## Bank account details (applicable to the Public Shareholders holding Offer Shares in PHYSICAL FORM)

Please fill the following details of the sole shareholder's bank account (or in the case of joint holders, the first-named holder's bank account) and any consideration payable will be paid by electronic transfer carrying the details of the bank account as per the banking account details and as provided in this Bid Form

Particulars	Details
Name of the sole/ first holder's bank	
Branch Address	
City and PIN Code of the Branch	
Bank account No.	
Savings / Current / Others (Please Specify)	
MICR Code (for electronic payment)	
IFSC Code/ MICR/ Swift Code (for electronic payment)	

Note: The fund transfer in electronic mode would be done at your risk based on the data provided as above by you.

### Depository Participant's details (applicable to Public Shareholders holding Offer Shares in DEMATERIALISED FORM)

I/ we confirm that I/ we hold my/ our Offer Shares in dematerialised form. The details of my/ our depository account and my/ our depository participant are as follows:

Name of Depository Participant	
Depository Participant ID No.:	
Client ID No.	
No. of Offer Shares	

# Other enclosures, if any applicable Please tick the box to the right of the appropriate category Power of attorney Corporate authorization Death Certificate Others (please specify)

Details of Previous Bid and the Offer Shares tendered pursuant to the Delisting Offer						
Particulars Figures in Numbers Figures in Words						
No. of Offer Shares						
Bid Price Per Offer Share (in ₹)						

Signature			
	Sole / First Holder	Second Holder	Third Holder

### **CHECKLIST (Please tick)**

	DEMAT SHAREHOLDERS		PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDERS		
1	BID FORM		1	BID FORM	
	OTHER DOCUMENTS, AS		2	ORIGINAL SHARE CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY	
2	APPLICABLE		3	VALID SHARE TRANSFER DEED	
	AITERABLE		4	SELF ATTESTED COPY OF PAN CARD	
			5	OTHER DOCUMENTS, AS APPLICABLE	

Notes:

- 1. All documents / remittances sent by / to the Public Shareholders will be at their risk and the Public Shareholders are advised to adequately safeguard their interests in this regard.
- 2. Please read these notes along with the entire contents of the Detailed Public Announcement and the Letter of Offer.
- 3. In the case of Public Shareholder(s) other than individuals, any documents, such as a copy of a power of attorney, board resolution, authorization, etc., as applicable and required in respect of support / verification of this Bid Form shall also be provided, otherwise, the Bid shall be liable for rejection.
- 4. Please refer to the Letter of Offer for details of the documents.
- 5. The number of Offer Shares tendered under the Delisting Offer should match with the number of Offer Shares held under the respective client ID number. In case of mismatch, the acceptance or partial acceptance of the Bid will be at the sole discretion of the Registrar to the Delisting Offer/ Manager to the Delisting Offer.
- 6. In case, the Bid price is less than the Floor Price of Rs 13.26 per Offer Share, it will be deemed that the Offer Shares have been tendered at the Floor Price of Rs 13.26.
- 7. The consideration shall be paid to the Public Shareholder(s) by their respective Seller Member in the name of sole/ first holder only.
- 8. Public Shareholders, holding Offer Shares in physical form, post bidding, should send the Bid Form along with share transfer deed, share certificates, TRS and other documents, as applicable, to the Registrar to the Delisting Offer. It is the sole responsibility of Public Shareholders/ Seller Member(s) to ensure that their Offer Shares held in physical form reaches the Registrar to the Delisting Offer on or before the close of business hours of November 11, 2022.
- 9. It is the sole responsibility of the Public Shareholders/ Seller Member(s) to ensure that their Offer Shares shall be transferred by using the settlement number and the procedure prescribed by the Clearing Corporation on or before the Bid Closing Date.
- 10. In case, the Bid Form sent to the Registrar to the Delisting Offer is not complete in all respects, the same may be liable for rejection.
- 11. The Bid Forms received / tendered before the commencement of the Bidding Period shall remain valid.
- 12. In case, the sole/ any joint holder has died, please enclose the requisite documents, i.e., copies of death certificate/ will/ probate/ succession certificate and other relevant papers, as applicable.
- 13. FOR OFFER SHARES HELD IN PHYSICAL FORM: Before submitting this Bid Form to the Seller Member(s), you must execute valid share transfer deed(s) in respect of the Offer Shares intended to be tendered under the Delisting Offer and attach thereto all the relevant original physical share certificate(s). The share transfer deed(s) shall be signed by the Public Shareholder (or in case of joint holdings by all the joint holders in the same order) in accordance with the specimen signature(s) recorded with the Company and shall also be duly witnessed. A copy of any signature proof may be attached to avoid any inconvenience.
- 14. FOR UNREGISTERED PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS: Unregistered Public Shareholders should enclose, as applicable, (a) this Bid Form, duly completed and signed in accordance with the instructions contained therein, (b) original share certificate(s), (c) original broker contract note, (d) valid share transfer form(s) as received from the market, duly stamped and executed as the transferee(s) along with blank transfer form duly signed as transferor(s) and witnessed at the appropriate place. All other requirements for valid transfer will be preconditions for acceptance.
- 15. FOR SUBMITTING THE BID FORM BY HAND DELIVERY: Please submit this Bid Form together with other necessary documents referred to above by hand delivery to the Seller Member.

# ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SLIP

Received from Mr./ Mrs./ M/s\_\_\_\_\_ \_\_\_\_a Bid Cum Acceptance Form for Offer Shares at a Bid Price of ₹\_\_\_\_\_\_ per Offer Share and the details of which are given as under.

DEMAT SHAREHOLDER		PHYSICAL SHAREHOL	DER
UNIQUE CLIENT CODE (UCC)		UNIQUE CLIENT CODE (UCC)	
DP ID NO.		FOLIO NUMBER	
CLIENT ID NO.		SHARE CERTIFICATE NO.	
NUMBER OF OFFER SHARES		NO. OF OFFER SHARE	
BID PRICE PER OFFER SHARE (₹)		BID PRICE PER OFFER SHARE (₹)	
Note: Received but not verified share certificate(s) and share transfer deeds			

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	
UNIQUE CLIENT CODE (UCC)	
APPLICATION NUMBER.	
DATE OF RECEIPT	
SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL	

Signature of Official:

Date of receipt:

TEAR ALONG THIS LINE

All correspondence in relation to the Delisting Offer should be addressed to the same Bid center where you have submitted your original Bid or at the following address:

> REGISTRAR TO THE DELISTING OFFER SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, New Delhi - 110020 Contact person: Rati Gupta Ph. No.: 011-26812682 Email ID: ipo@skylinerta.com Website: https://www.skylinerta.com SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241

### BID REVISION CUM WITHDRAWAL FORM/ BID FORM THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

(In respect of the Equity Shares of the International Constructions Limited pursuant to the Delisting Offer by the Acquirer/PACs)

Please read this document along with the Detailed Public Announcement dated October 20, 2022, published on October 21, 2022 (**"Detailed Public Announcement"** / **"DPA"**) and the Letter of Offer dated October 25, 2022 (**"Letter of Offer"**) issued by the SKI Capital Services Limited ('Manager to the Offer') for and on behalf of one of the promoters of the International Constructions Limited viz., Mrs. Priti Devi Sethi ("Acquirer") along with Anil Kumar Sethi HUF ("PAC 1"), Deepak Sethi ("PAC 2") and Zoom Industrial Services Limited ("PAC 3"), person acting in concert with the Acquirer who are forming a part of the promoter and promoter group of the company, as defined under the SEBI (Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (collectively referred to as the "PACs"), to the Public Shareholders (as defined below) expressing their intention to : (a) acquire all the Equity Shares that are held by public shareholders; and (b) consequently voluntarily delist the equity shares of International Constructions Limited ("Target Company") from the concerned stock exchange where the Equity Shares are presently listed, namely, National Stock Exchange of India Limited, by making a delisting offer in accordance with the provisions of the Delisting Regulations ("Delisting Proposal").

We also request you to read SEBI Circulars in relation to Stock Exchange Mechanism introduced by SEBI. The terms and conditions of the Detailed Public Announcement and the Letter of Offer are deemed to have been incorporated in and form part of this document.

Unless otherwise defined, capitalized terms used in this Bid Revision cum Withdrawal Form/ Bid Form have the same meaning as defined in the Detailed Public Announcement and the Letter of Offer

Note: Public Shareholders should note that this Bid Form should not be sent to the Manager to the Delisting Offer or the Registrar to the Delisting Offer or to the Acquirer/PACs or to the promoter or to the Company or the Stock Exchange. Public Shareholders should further note that they should have a trading account with their broker i.e., a Seller Member as the Bids can be entered in the reverse book building process of Stock Exchange, only through their respective Seller Member. The Seller Member would issue contract note and pay the consideration to the respective Public Shareholder whose Offer Shares are accepted under the Delisting Offer. Please note that submission of Bid Form and TRS is not mandatorily required in case of Offer Shares held in dematerialized form.

DELISTING OFFER*								
Bid Opening Date	Thursday, 3rd November, 2022							
Last Date for Revision (upwards) or Withdrawal	Thursday, 10 <sup>th</sup> November, 2022	Bids can be revised and withdrawn only during normal trading hours of secondary						
Bid Closing Date	Friday, 11 <sup>th</sup> November, 2022	market						
Floor Price per Offer Share	Rs. 13.26 /-							
Indicative Price Per Offer Share	Rs. 16.50 /-							

	DELISTING OFFER*					
Discovered Price	The price at which the shareholding of the Acquirer/PACs reaches 90% of the total Equity Shares of the Target Company, excluding such Equity Shares in terms of Regulation 21(a) of the Delisting Regulations, pursuant to reverse book building process.					
Exit Price	The Discovered Price, if accepted by the Acquirer/PACs; A price higher than the Discovered Price, if offered by the Acquirer/PACs, at its discretion; or The Counter Offer Price offered by the Acquirer/PACs at its sole and absolute discretion which, pursuant to acceptance and / or rejection by Public Shareholders, results in the cumulative shareholding of the Acquirer/PACs and other members of the promoter and promoter group of the Target Company reaching to 90% of the total Equity Shares of the Target Company, excluding such Equity Shares in terms of Regulation 21(a) of the Delisting Regulations.					

\*The dates are subject to, among other things, the Acquirer/PACs obtaining the necessary approvals, if any, prior to the Bid Opening Date

(To be filled in by the Seller Member(s))

Name of Seller Member		
Address of Seller Member		
UCC		
Application Number	Date	

### INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

(In respect of the Equity Shares of the International Constructions Limited pursuant to the Delisting Offer by the

### Acquirer/PACs)

Dear Sir(s)/Madam,

### Re: Delisting Offer to acquire the Offer Shares by the Acquirer/PACs in accordance with the Delisting Regulations.

I/We hereby revoke any offer made in any Bid Form submitted prior to the date of this Bid Revision cum Withdrawal Form in respect of the Offer Shares. I / We hereby make a new Bid to tender the number of Offer Shares set out or deemed to be set out herein and on and subject to the term and conditions, as applicable.

Holder's details (Please use BLOCK CAPITALS)							
	Holder	Name and Address	PAN				
Complete this box with the full name, signature and address of the holder of the Offer Shares. In case of joint holdings, full name of all the joint holders must appear in the same order as appearing in the share certificate(s)/ demat account.	First / Sole						
	Second						
	Third						

Contact details	Tel. No.:	
	Mobile No.:	
	Email ID:	

Address of the First / Sole holder: (with pin code)								
	Individual	NRI (non-repatriable)						
Type of investor	Hindu Undivided Family	NRI (repatriable)						
(Please tick () the box to the right of the appropriate	Domestic Company / Body Corporate	FPI						
category)	Mutual Fund	Insurance Company						
category)	Banks/ Financial Institution	Other (please specify)						
Date and place of incorporation of the holder (if applicable)								

# TO BE FILLED IN ONLY IF THE NUMBER OF THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE BEEN INCREASED AS COMPARED TO NUMBER OF THE EQUITY SHARES TENDERED IN THE PREVIOUS BID FOR SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING THE EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM

Details of original share certificate(s) along with duly filled, signed transfer deed(s), as enclosed. The Details are applicable only for additional Offer Shares tendered with a view to increase the number of Offer Shares tendered.

Sr.No. Folio	Folio No.	Share Certificate(s) No.	Distinctive N	Nos.	No. of Offer Shares
Sr.10.	F 0110 INO.		From	То	No. of Offer Shares
1					
2					
3					
(If the spa	(If the space provided is inadequate, please attach a separate continuation sheet)				

# TO BE FILLED IN ONLY IF THE NUMBER OF THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE BEEN INCREASED AS COMPARED TO NUMBER OF THE EQUITY SHARES TENDERED IN THE PREVIOUS BID (FOR SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING THE EQUITY SHARES DEMATERIALISED FORM)

Following details are applicable only for additional Offer Shares tendered with a view to increase the number of Offer Shares

DP Name	
DP ID No.:	
Client ID No.	
No. of Offer Shares	

Other enclosures, if any applicable						
Please tick ( ) the box to the right Power of attorney Corporate authorization						
of the appropriate category Death Certificate Others (please specify)						

Details of Previous Bid and the Offer Shares tendered pursuant to the Delisting Offer								
Particulars Figures in Numbers Figures in Words								
No. of Offer Shares								
Bid Price Per Offer Share (₹)	3id Price Per Offer Share (₹)							

Withdrawal of I	Withdrawal of Bid							
I hereby confirm that I / We would like to withdraw the earlier Bid made by me/us as detailed above and would like to treat the bid as null and void.								
Please tick ( ) in the appropriate box     Yes :     No.:								
Signature	Signature							
	Sole / F	irst Holder		Second Hol	der	Third	Holder	

### **CHECKLIST (Please tick)**

	DEMAT SHAREHOLDERS			PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDERS		
1	BID FORM		1	BID FORM		
	2 OTHER DOCUMENTS, AS APPLICABLE		2	ORIGINAL SHARE CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY		
2			3	VALID SHARE TRANSFER DEED		
			4	SELF ATTESTED COPY OF PAN CARD		
			5	OTHER DOCUMENTS, AS APPLICABLE		

Notes:

- 1. All documents sent by/to the Public Shareholders will be at their risk and the Public Shareholders are advised to adequately safeguard their interests in this regard.
- 2. The Public Shareholders may withdraw or revise their Bids upwards not later than one day before the Bid Closing Date.
- 3. Downward revision of Bids shall not be permitted.
- 4. You must submit this Bid Revision cum Withdrawal Form to the same Seller Member through whom your original Bid Form was submitted. Please ensure that you enclose a copy of the acknowledgement slip relating to your previous Bid.
- 5. Please note that all the information, terms and conditions contained in the original Bid Form shall remain valid, except which has been revised under Bid Revision cum Withdrawal Form.
- 6. In case you wish to tender additional dematerialized Offer Shares, please ensure that you have instructed your Seller Member to mark lien on your additional Offer Shares. In case you wish to tender additional physical Offer Shares, please ensure that you attach the additional share certificate(s) and the transfer deed along with the Bid Revision cum Withdrawal Form. Please ensure that the number of the Offer Shares tendered under the Bid Revision cum Withdrawal Form is equal to the number indicated in the share certificate(s) attached and the transfer deed executed, if any.
- 7. In case of the Public Shareholder(s) other than individuals, copy of power of attorney, board resolution, authorization etc., as applicable and required in respect of support/verification of this Bid Revision cum Withdrawal Form, shall also be provided, otherwise, the same shall be liable for rejection.
- 8. The consideration shall be paid to the Public Shareholder(s) by their respective Seller Member in the name of sole/first holder only.
- 9. The Public Shareholders, holding the Offer Shares in physical form, post bidding, should send the Bid Form along with share transfer deed, share certificates, TRS and other documents, as applicable, to the Registrar to the Delisting Offer. It is the sole responsibility of the Public Shareholders/ Seller Member(s) to ensure that their Offer Shares held in physical form reaches the Registrar to the Delisting Offer on or before the close of business hours of November 11, 2022.
- 10. In case, the Bid Form sent to the Registrar to the Delisting Offer is not complete in all respects, the same may be liable for rejection.

# ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SLIP

 

 Received from Mr./ Mrs./ M/s\_\_\_\_\_\_a Bid Revision Cum Withdrawal Formatian a Bid Price of ₹\_\_\_\_\_\_per Offer Share and the details of which are given as under.

 \_a Bid Revision Cum Withdrawal Form for Offer Shares

DEMAT SHAREHOLDER		PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDER			
UNIQUE CLIENT CODE (UCC)		UNIQUE CLIENT CODE (UCC)			
DP ID NO.		FOLIO NUMBER			
CLIENT ID NO.		SHARE CERTIFICATE NO.			
NUMBER OF OFFER SHARES		NO. OF OFFER SHARE			
BID PRICE PER OFFER SHARE (₹)		BID PRICE PER OFFER SHARE			
BID PRICE PER OFFER SHARE (\$)		(₹)			
Note: Received but not verified share certificate(s) and share transfer deeds					

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	
UNIQUE CLIENT CODE (UCC)	
APPLICATION NUMBER.	
DATE OF RECEIPT	
SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL	

Signature of Official:

Date of receipt:

----- TEAR ALONG THIS LINE ------

All correspondence in relation to the Delisting Offer should be addressed to the same Bid Center where you have submitted your original Bid or at the following address:

# REGISTRAR TO THE DELISTING OFFER

SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, New Delhi - 110020 Contact person: Rati Gupta Ph. No.: 011-26812682 Email ID: ipo@skylinerta.com Website: https://www.skylinerta.com SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241

# Form No. SH-4 - Securities Transfer Form

[Pursuant to section 56 of the Companies Act, 2013 and sub-rule (1) of rule 11 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014]

Date of execution.....

FOR THE CONSIDERATION stated below the "Transferor(s)" named do hereby transfer to the "Transferee(s)" named	the
securities specified below subject to the conditions on which the said securities are now held by the Transferor(s) and	the
Transferee(s) do hereby agree to accept and hold the said securities subject to the conditions aforesaid.	

CIN: L45309KA1983PLC038816

Name of the company (in full): International Constructions Limited Name of the Stock Exchange where the company is listed, if any: National Stock Exchange of India Limited

# **DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES:**

Kind/Class of securities (1)Nominal value of each unit of security (2)		Amount called up per unit of security (3)	Amount paid up per unit of security (4)		

No. of Securities being Transferred		Consideration Received (₹)			
In Figures	In words	In Figures	In words		

Distinctive Number	From				
	То				
Corresponding Certificate Nos:					

# TRANSFEROR'S PARTICULARS

Signature(s)
Witness Signature

# **TRANSFEREE'S PARTICULARS-**

Name in Full (1)	Father's/ Mother's/ Spouse name (2)	Address & E-mail id (3)	Occupation (4)	Existing folio No., if any (5)	Signature (6)

Folio No. of Transferee	Specimen Signature of Transferee
Value of stamp affixed	₹

# Value of stamp affixed

#### **DECLARATION:**

Transferee is not required to obtain the Government approval under the Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 prior to transfer of shares;

0r

Transferee is required to obtain the Government approval under the Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 prior to transfer of shares and the same has been obtained and is enclosed herewith.

### **Enclosures:**

- (1) Certificate of shares or debentures or other securities
- (2) If no certificate is issued, letter of allotment.
- (3) Copy of PAN CARD
- (4) Other, Specify.....

#### Stamps:

For office use only						
Checked by		Signature tallied by	/			
-						
Entered in the Register of Transfer	on vide Tr	ransfer No. Approval Da	te			
-						
Power of attorney /	Probate /	Death Certificate	/	Letter	of	administration
registered on						
at No.						